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AROUT SmariTeone

SmarTone is Hong Kong's leading mobile network operator in data services. We are a customer-oriented company and
aim to bring our customers closer to the people, the information and the entertainment that is important to them and,
through this, to generate greater shareholders’ value. SmarTone is committed to delivering the best value proposition in
the market through continual improvements in the three pillars of our businesses — products and services, network
performance and customer service — as well as the company's brand position.

SmarTone was selected as one of Asia’s Top 20 Brands in the annual “Top Asian Brands"” survey conducted by Media
magazine in June 2003. SmarTone was the only mobile operator to be included in the Top 20 alongside other major
international brands.

With our strong technological heritage and deep commitment to quality service, SmarTone introduces compelling mobile
data services which are marketed under three categories: SmarTone 800", a ground-breaking mobile multimedia service
providing information and entertainment for all customers; SmarTone BIZ', a suite of simple and easy-to-use mobile
business services for business executives and professionals to stay ahead of the game; and messaging services, such
as picturemail’. SmarTone's branded offerings, including SmarTone 800", SmarTone BIZ, emailon the go’,
" picturemail”, moviemail”, smsvia email” and (<e#PhoneHome || deliver substantial benefits to customers.

Operating the best network in town, SmarTone provides customers with voice and data services of the highest quality.

SmarTone has become the leader in customer service, not only amongst telecom operators, but also across all service
industries in Hong Kong. This is exemplified by the growing number of local and regional retail and service awards
received by the company.

Hong Kong Retail Management Association’s Annual Service and Courtesy Awards

Best Team Award 2001 & 2002
Supervisory Level Award 2001
Junior Frontline Level Award 2002

Hong Kong Retail Management Association's Mystery Shoppers Programme
Service Category Leader 2002 & 2003
Service Retailer of the Year 2002

Hong Kong Management Association’s Distinguished Salesperson Award
Four SmarTone-nominated staff members won 2003
Five SmarTone-nominated statf members won 2002

Asia Pacific Customer Service Consortium's Customer Relationship Excellence Awards

Customer Relationship Excellence - Outstanding Achievement 2002
Call Centre of the Year (Telecommunications) 2002
Customer Service Professional of the Year 2002

Hong Kong Call Centre Association’s Call Centre Award
Call Centre Team Leader - Silver & Bronze 2002
Call Centre Professional - Bronze 2002

Next Magazine's 14th Top Service Award 2003

Top Service Gold Award 2003
Top Service Category Award 2003
Champion of The Best Staff Award 2003

SmarTone has been publicly listed in Hong Kong since 1996. The company’s major shareholder is Sun Hung Kai Properties
Limited (holding about 51 %).

For more information, please visit SmarTone’s website at www.smartone.com.hk
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SmarTone's messaging services, such as picturemail” and
moviemail’, help customers communicate more effectively,
instantly and creatively.







SmarTone BIZ

Helping business people on the move to stay ahead of the game
by enhancing their productivity and competitiveness.







SmarTone 3"

SmarTone 8L1" brings customers fun, entertainment and a lot
more through a wide variety of live information, games and smart
tips.
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DIRECTORS AND

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Board of Direclors

* Mr. Raymond Kwok Ping-luen
Chairman

Mr. Douglas Li
Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Patrick Chan Kai-lung
* Mr. Ernest Lai Ho-kai
¥ Mr. Michael Wong Yick-kam
* Mr. Andrew 8o Sing-tak
*  Mr. Cheung Wing Yui
** The Hon. Eric Li Ka-cheung, JP
** The Hon. Ng Leung Sing
** Dr. Sachio Semmoto
* Non-Executive Director

** Independent Non-Executive Director

Company Secretary

Miss Maria Li Sau-ping

Authorised Representatives

Mr. Douglas Li
Miss Maria Li Sau-ping

Registered Office

Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda

Head Office and
Principal Place of Business

31st Floor, JOS Tower, Miliennium City 2,

378 Kwun Tong Road, Kwun Tong,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

22nd Floor, Prince’s Building, 10 Chater Road,
Hong Kong

Hong Kong Share Registrar

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong

Principal Share Registrar

Butterfield Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
Rosebank Centre, 11 Bermudiana Road,
Pembroke, Bermuda

Principal Bankers

Standard Chartered Bank

Legal Advisors to the Company

As to Hong Kong law
Norton Rose

As to Bermuda law
Convers, Dill & Pearman

Bermuda Resident Representative

Mr. John Charles Ross Collis
Mr. Anthony Devon Whaley (Deputy)
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FINANCIAL RIGHRILIGHTS

(HK$ millions except per share amounts)

Profit and loss account
Turnover
Profit attributable to shareholders
Earnings per share (HK$)
Dividends per share

Total for the year (HK$)

Special cash dividend (HK$)

Balance sheet
Total assets
Current liabilities

Net assets

Shareholders’ funds
Minority interest

Cashflow

Net cash inflow from operating activities
Interest received

Purchases of fixed assets

Repurchases of shares

Dividends paid

Other

Net increase in cash and held-to-maturity debt securities

Year ended or as at 30 June

2003

2,832
408
0.70

0.47
3.50

5,940
{548)

5,392

5,372
20

5,392

844
91
{395)

(25)
(143}
(35)

337

2002

2,401
115
0.20

0.07

5,781
(632)

5,149

5,132
17

5,149

e
[

)
RN







FAIRMANS STATEMERNT

Amidst the outbreak of SARS and increased market
competition, SmarTone delivered encouraging
improvements in its results. Net profit increased 3.5
times to $408 million. Your company continues to focus
on improving the three key pillars of its business —
products and services; network performance; and

customer service — while establishing a leading position
in mobile data services. It has also strengthened its
branding in the market.

Group turnover was $2,832 million, an increase of 18
per cent. on $2,401 millicn for the previous year. Mobile
services revenue registered a 4 per cent. growth and
reached $2,263 million.

Group earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and
amortisation (“EBITDA") of $753 million was up 33 per
cent. on last year. Earnings before interest and tax
("EBIT”) increased substantially to $335 million.

Profit attributable to shareholders increased 3.5 times
to $408 million on $115 million for the previous year.
Earnings per share amounted to $0.70,

Your Board recommends a final dividend of $0.27 per
share. Together with the interim dividend of $0.20 per
share, dividend for the year will be $0.47 per share,
representing a substantial increase on $0.07 per share
for last year. To achieve a more efficient capital structure
for the Group and to reward shareholders for their
support, your Board proposes a special cash dividend of
$3.50 per share. After the distribution of the proposed
dividends, your company still retains sufficient cash
resources for expected operational needs.

Hong Kong Mobile Business

Business strategy
SmarTone has been pursuing a two-pronged strategy:

e Continual service quality improvement — Your
company strives to increase revenue market share
by enhancing customer satisfaction through the
delivery of the best customer propositions in the
market. To achieve this strategic objective, your
company has been focusing on continual
enhancements of the three key pillars of its business
— products and services; network performance; and
customer service.

e Competitive pricing — In a deflationary economy,
customers are becoming increasingly price-sensitive.
To increase its revenue market share in this
environment, SmarTone has adopted a competitive
pricing strategy.

To enable this strategy, your company has improved its
productivity and competitiveness. This is being achieved
by enhancing the effectiveness and efficiency of its
organisation, systems and processes,

Performance

Blended ARPU for the year increased by 7 per cent. 10
$183, with postpaid ARPU growing moderately to $213
from $210 for the previous year. The outbreak of SARS
and increased market competition exerted significant
downward pressure on roaming usage and local tariffs
in the fourth quarter of the year, and counteracted the
improvements in ARPU and service revenue achieved in
the first half. Postpaid churn rate improved to 2.6 per
cent. in June 2003 from 3.0 per cent. in June 2002,
Operating expenses were reduced during the year,
notwithstanding an increased number of key marketing
and services initiatives. As at 30 June 2003, there were
966,000 customers.
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Business operations
Branding

SmarTone has been strengthening its market positioning
and appeal while reinforcing its customer proposition —
helping customers get closer to the people, the
information and the entertainment that is important to
them.

Your cornpany’s effort in progressively advancing its
branding has started to yield results. SmarTone was
selected as one of Asia’s Top 20 Brands in the annual
“Top Asian Brands” survey conducted by Media
magazing in June 2003. SmarTone was the only mobile
operator to be included in the Top 20 alongside other
major international brands.

Products and services

SmarTone continues to lead in bringing innovative
products and services to market, meeting different
customers’ needs. It has marketed mobile data services
that offer clear and compelling propositions, which are
easy-to-use, and deliver a superior total customer
experience.

e« SmarTonedHD” is the first mobile portal in Hong
Kong capable of delivering true mobile multimedia
experience. It offers convenient access to a wide
variety of rich information and entertainment content
and services, tergeting different customers' needs.
With continually updated and enhanced content and
services, SmarTone 800 has been well-received by
customers. It has stimulated a substantial increase in
data raffic and the usage of different mobile data
services, including mobile games, images and music
downloads, as well as content for information, fun
and entertainment,

SmarTone introduced the CJSP Java engine, which is
optimised for the best mobile gaming experience, in
conjunction with rich game content sourced from the
world’s leading games providers. SmarTone’s leading
role in mobile gaming is further enhanced by its
recently launched ww&U 77, the first mobile on-line
role-play game in Hong Kong, allowing live interaction
among players.

e SmarToneBIZ is a suite of mobile business tools
designed for busy and frequently travelled executives
to enhance their productivity and competitiveness, and
to better manage their working and personal lives.

* Your company provides the most sophisticated, yet
simple-to-use, messaging services in Hong Kong. ts
picturemail” offers a picture messaging service that
provides customers with a range of unique benefits,
including assured message delivery for non-MMS
phones; best-fit-to-screen picture rendition; full
storage and replay of MMS messages, including
slideshows, on personal computers; and
personalisation of MMS messages with picture
frames. SmarTone's moviemail delivers the best-in-
class video messaging with its GX22 CameraPhone.

* SmarTone has partnered with manufacturers to
develop advanced handsets in order to bring the most
compelling data services to market. Your company
introduced GX12, the first GSM handset with superior
xHTML browsing capability, enabling customers to
enjoy the true mobile multimedia experience of
SmarTone80D". The GX series of mobile phones
was voted the "Best Wireless Handset” for 2003 by
the GSM Association. SmarTone has just launched
GX22, the first GSM handset in the world with
Continucus Grain Siflicon screen, providing the highest
resolution and best colour rendition of images.

Network performance

To enable the best mobile experience for its customers,
SmarTone continues to invest in its radio, core and service
networks to deliver superior availability, reliability and
speed in all its services. Properly integrating sophisticated
and intelligent infrastructure is key to providing data
services which are simple and easy-to-use for customers.




Customer service

SmarTone continues to deliver the best customer service
in the industry. Your company has been winning
numerous major industry and service awards, which
validates SmarTone as a leader in customer service, not
only amongst telecom operators, but also across all
service industries in Hong Kong. A notable achievement
was the winning of the Best Team Performance Award
for the second year running at the 2002 Service and
Courtesy Awards of the Hong Kong Retail Management
Association, the major association representing Hong
Kong's retail industry. Your company’s unprecedented
achievement in this competition reflects the consistent
high standard achieved by its whole front-line team. The
recognition of SmarTone's excellence in customer service
was elevated to regional level with its winning of three
awards from the Asia Pacific Customer Service
Consortium, including the overall winner of the 2002
Customer Relationship Excellence Awards.

Macau Mobile Business

The mobile business in Macau incurred a marginal loss
in the year, due to the impact of SARS on roaming
revenue.

While the Hong Kong mobile market has now recovered
from SARS, customers are expected to remain price-
sensitive and there is no sign of abatement in
competition. SmarTone will continue to pursue its
strategy and accelerate the pace of bringing new services
to market, aiming to create new revenue streams and to
reinforce its leadership in mobile data services.
Concurrently, your company will further improve
productivity and competitiveness to maximise value for
shareholders.

With saturated mobile penetration in Hong Kong, further
growth from voice services would be limited.
Nevertheless, as mobile phones have evolved into mobile
networked PCs, operators could capture new growth
opportunities by stimulating additional demand through
mobile data services. SmarTone is implementing very
substantial changes in its management focus and
operational practices in order to capitalise on this
changing environment. It has put strong emphasis on
satisfying customers’ needs on offering compelling, easy-
to-use services that can exploit the unigueness of mobile
media and deliver real benefits and value to customers.
Your company is making good progress in 3G preparation
and is likely to put its 3G network into commercial service,
probably sometime in 2004. | am confident that SmarTone
is on the right track geing forward.

Your company enjoys a strong balance sheet, giving it
substantial flexibility going forward.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank you, our
shareholders, for your faith in SmarTone and look forward
to sharing with you greater success in the future. | would
also like to express my gratitude to our customers for
their continual support, and to our staff for their
commitment and hard work in delivering another set of
encouraging results.

Raymond Kwok Ping-luen
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 September 2003
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Querview

SmarTone's strong recovery in financial performance in
2001/02 continued for 2002/03. The Group achieved a
profit attributable to shareholders of HK$408 million for
2002/03 {2001/02: HK$115 million).

The better financial performance in 2002/03 arose as
follows:

e The mobile business achieved earnings before interest
and tax ("EBIT") in 2002/03 of HK$333 million
(2001/02: HK$105 million). The financial performance
of both the Hong Kong and Macau mobile businesses
substantially improved during the year.

¢ The Internet services provider (“ISP") business was
closed during 2002/03. During 2002/03, the business
achieved EBIT break-even (2001/02: EBIT loss of
HK$82 million).

¢ There was no charge for impairment of fixed and other
assets during 2002/03 (2001/02: HK$122 million).

Profit attributable to shareholders for the second half of
2002/03 of HK$170 million was lower than the first half
of HK$238 million, mainly due to the SARS epidemic and
increased market competition.

Molbile

The mobile business achieved earnings before interest,
tax, depreciation and amortisation ("EBITDA") for
2002/03 of HK$751 million (2001/02: HK$573 million).
Turnover was higher while cost of services provided and
other operating expenses were both lower. EBITDA for
the second half of 2002/03 was HK$359 million compared
to HK$392 million in the first half. This was mainly due
to a drop in roaming revenue in April to June 2003 due to
the SARS epidemic and increased market competition.

Turnover increased by HK$470 million to HK$2,819 million
in 2002/03 (2001/02: HK$2,348 million). Mobile service
revenue was higher by HK$92 million and handset and
accessory sales by HK$378 million.

* Mobile service revenue increased mainly due to higher
prepaid revenue arising from higher average Hong
Kong prepaid ARPU during 2002/03. Postpaid revenue
was flat in 2002/03. However, data revenue increased
significantly, albeit from a low base, as more data
sefvices with compelling customer propositions were
introduced. Average Hong Kong postpaid ARPU for
2002/03 was HK$213 per month (2001/02: HK$210
per month). However, this was offset by lower average
postpaid customers. Hong Kong mobile average
blended ARPU (calculated as mobile services revenue
divided by the total number of postpaid and prepaid
customers) for 2002/03 increased by 7 per cent. to
HK$183 (2001/02: HK$171).

* Handset and accessory sales increased primarily due
to the introduction of new models during 2002/03 with
advanced features such as colour screens and
embedded cameras.

Total customers of the Hong Kong mobile business was
966,000 as at 30 June 2003. The 2002/03 year end
monthly postpaid churn rate was 2.6% compared to 3.0%
at the end of 2001/02. This improvement was because
the Group has been offering the best customer
proposition in the market with its continual
enhancements in service quality and competitive pricing.

Cost of goods sold and services provided in 2002/03
increased to HK$871 million (2001/02: HK$567 million).
This resulted from higher cost of handsets due to the
increased number sold. Other cost of goods sold and
services provided decreased due to lower interconnect
charges.
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Other operating expenses {excluding depreciation)
decreased in 2002/03 to HK$1,197 million (2001/02:
HK$1,209 million). Most categories of expense were
lower due to improvements in the efficiency of the
organisation and its systems and processes. The
reduction in operating expenses was achieved
notwithstanding the Group continuing to improve
productivity and competitiveness, while enhancing
service quality, improving its branding and accelerating
the rate of bringing new services to market. However,
network costs increased due to the efforts in improving
its already market-leading network quality.

The Group's mobile business in Macau made a small EBIT
profit in the first half of 2002/03 but an EBIT loss in the
second half due to the effect of SARS. Overall, Macau
made a small EBIT ‘oss in 2002/03.

ISP business

The Group’s ISP business achieved approximately EBIT
break-even during 2002/03 and was closed in June 2003.
The obligations of the outstanding performance bonds
of HK$5€ million were satisfied during the year and the
bonds released.

Subsidiaries, associates and other
investments

There have been no significant subsidiary companies
acquired or established during the year.

The Group has invested in three telecom and technology
venture capital funds, one of which is held via an
investment in an associated company. During the year
ended 30 June 2003, an additional provision was made
of HK$17 million against one of these funds to reflect its
current estimated market valuation. The Directors are of
the opinion these investments are conservatively valued.

There were no disposals of subsidiaries, associates or
other investments during the year ended 30 June 2003.

Capital structure, liquidity and
financial resources

The Group is financed entirely by share capital and
internally generated funds and has no external
borrowings. The cash reserves of the Group remain
strong with cash and bank balances and fixed income
investments of HK$3,923 million at 30 June 2003, an
increase of HK$337 million during 2002/03.

The Group invests a proportion of its surplus cash in held-
to-maturity investment grade fixed income investments
to generate a better rate of return. During the year, the
Group invested an additional HK$685 million {2001/02:
HK$682 million) in such investments. The Group received
proceeds during the year of HK$173 million {2001/02:
Nil) from sales of held-to-maturity investment grade fixed
income investments and proceeds of HK$429 million
(2001/02: HK$39 million) from the early redemption of
investments by their issuers.

The Group had a net inflow from operating activities
during the year of HK$844 million. Interest income during
the year was HK$72 million (2001/02: HK$86 million).
Higher average cash balances were offset by lower
average interest rates obtainable in the marketplace.
Interest income for the year is net of a loss of HK$6
million arising from the disposal of held-to-maturity
investment grade fixed income investments during the
year. In addition to the purchase of fixed income
investments, the Group’s other major outflows of funds
during the year were purchase of fixed assets and
payment of dividends.

The Directors of the Group are of the opinion that the
Group can fund its capital expenditure for the current
financial year ending 30 June 2004 from existing cash
resources.



Treaswry policy

The Group invests its surplus funds in accordance with a
treasury policy approved from time to time by the Board
of Directors. Surplus funds are placed on deposit with
banks in Hong Kong or invested in investment grade debt
securities. Bank deposits in Hong Kong are maintained
materially in Hong Kong or United States dollars.

The Group's investments in debt securities are
investment grade bonds denominated in either Hong
Kong or United States dollars with a maximum maturity
of 3 years. The Group's policy is to hold its investments
in debt securities until maturity.

The Group is reqguired to arrange for banks to issue
performance bonds and letters of credit on its behalf. In
certain circumstances, the Group will partially or fully
collaterise such instruments by cash deposits to lower
their issuance cost. Total amount of piedged deposits at
30 June 2003 was HK$392 million (30 June 2002: HK$525
million).

Functional currency and foreign
exchange exposure

The functional currency of the Group is the Hong Kong
dollar. All material revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, except its United States dollar fixed income
investments and bank deposits, are denominated in Hong
Kong dollars. The Group does not therefore have any
significant exposure to foreign currency gains and losses
other than those arising due to its United States dollar
denominated bank deposits and fixed income
investments. The Group does not currently undertake
any foreign exchange hedging.

Contingent liabilities
Performance bonds

Certain banks, on the Group's behalf, have issued
performance bonds to the telecommunications
authorities of Hong Kong and Macau in respect of
obligations under licences issued by those authorities.
The total amount outstanding at 30 June 2003 under
these performance bonds was HK$202 million (30 June
2002; HK$308 million). All performance bonds were fully
cash collateralised using surplus cash deposits. The
decrease during the year arose as foliows:

¢ The remaining performance bond obligations totalling
HK$56 million relating to the Group's LMDS licence
were released as discussed under ISP business above.

e The performance bond in respect of the Group's
licence for 3G services was reduced by HK$50 million
to HK$200 million in accordance with a one-year
waiver granted by the Telecommunications Authority
of Hong Kong.

Lease out, lease back arrangement

A bank, on the Group's behalf, has issued a letter of credit
to guarantee the Group's obligations under a lease out,
lease back arrangement entered into during the year
ended 30 June 1999. This letter of credit is fully cash
collateralised using surplus cash deposits. The Directors
are of the opinion that the risk of the Group being required
to make payment under this guarantee is remote.

Other than the above, the Group has no other material
contingent liabilities.

Employees and share option
scheme

The Group employed approximately 1,280 full-time
employees as at 30 June 2003, with the majority in Hong
Kong. Staff receive a remuneration package consisting
of basic salary, bonus and other benefits. Bonus
payments are discretionary and depend, inter-alia, on both
the Group's perfermance and the performance of the
individual employee. Benefits include a mandatory
provident fund scheme and medical and dental care
insurance. Staff members are provided with both internal
and external training appropriate to each individual’s
reguirements.

During the year, the Company resolved to terminate its
existing employee share option scheme and adopt a new
scheme. At 30 June 2003, options to subscribe for
5,200,000 shares were outstanding under the new
scheme and there were no options outstanding under
the old scheme. The options outstanding under the old
scheme either lapsed, or were acquired for a nominal
amount pursuant to the mandatory general offer by
Cellular 8 Holdings Limited for the Company's shares
completed in January 2003.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2003.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The activities of its principal subsidiaries are shown in note
19 to the financial statements.

o

I

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2003 are set out in the consolidated profit and loss account on page

The Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.27 per share (2002: HK$0.07 per share) to the
shareholders registered in the Company's register of members as at the close of business on 4 November 2003. In
addition, the Directors also proposed to pay a special cash dividend of HK$3.50 per share to the shareholders. The
proposed final dividend and special cash dividend, together with the interim dividend of HK$0.20 per share paid by the
Company during the year, make a total distribution of HK$3.97 per share for the financial year ended 30 June 2003.

Five year financial summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is shown on page

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the year are set out in note 26 to the financial
statements.

Distributable reserves

Distributable reserves of the Company at 30 June 2003 amounted to HK$2,207,936,000 (30 June 2002: HK$939,321,000).

Conations

During the year, charitable and other donations made by the Group amounted to HK$206,000 (2002: HK$18,000).

Fined assels

Details of the movements in fixed assets are shown in note 15 to the financial statements.

Share capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are shown in note 24 to the financial statements.




Dirsctors and nterests in contracts
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report were:
* Mr. Raymond Kwok Ping-luen
Chairman

Mr. Douglas Li
Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Patrick Chan Kai-lung
* Mr. Ernest Lai Ho-kai
* Mr. Michael Wong Yick-kam
* Mr. Andrew So Sing-tak

* Mr, Cheung Wing-yui
‘Appointed on 13 March 2003)

** The Hon. Eric Li Ka-cheung, JP
** The Hon. Ng Leung-sing

** Dr. Sachio Semmoto
(Appointed on 24 September 2002)

* Mr. Rick Tang Yet-san
{Resigned on 24 September 2002)

* M. Peter Francis Cross
(Resigned on 22 January 2003)

* Mr, Graham Goodfellow Moore
{Resigned on 22 January 2003)

¥ Mr, Mario Michael
(Appointed on 24 September 2002 and
resigned on 22 January 2003)

* Non-Executive Director
** Independent Non-Executive Director

In accordance with Bye-law No. 110(A) of the Company's Bye-laws, Messrs. Ernest Lai Ho-kai, Douglas Li and Michael
Wong Yick-kam retire by rotation, and Mr. Cheung Wing-yui retires in accordance with Bye-law No. 101 at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. All retiring Directors, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. All remaining Directors
shall cont nue in office.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the Company within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The term of office of the Independent Non-Executive Directors shall be governed by the provision of Bye-laws No. 110
and No. 111 of the Company.

Apart from the connected transactions referred to in this report, no other contracts of significance in relation to the
Group's business to which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.




Biographical detalls of Directors and senior management

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior management are set out on pages 39 to 43.

Cirectors’ Interests and short positions

At 30 June 2003, the interests of the Directors, chief executive and their respective associates in shares and in respect
of equity derivatives, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (as defined in
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded in the register maintained by the Company under section
352 of the SFO were as follows:

Interests in shares and underlying shares of the Company

Equity

Shares derivatives
Percentage
Discretionary of aggregate
Beneficial  trust founder & Spouse or Controlled Share options Agagregate interests to
Name of Director owner  trust beneficiary  child under 18 corporation {Note) interests issued capital
Raymond Kwak Ping-luen — 698,767 — — — 698,767 0.11
Douglas Li - - - - 5,000,000 5,000,000 0.86
Patrick Chan Kai-lung - - - - 200,000 200,000 0.03

Note: share options
Cancelled/

Outstanding at Granted Exercised Lapsed Qutstanding at
Name of Director 1 July 2002 during the year during the year during the year 30 June 2003
Douglas Li 5,000,000 5,000,000 — 5,000,000 5,000,000
{Note 1)
Patrick Chan Kai-lung 200,000 200,000 — 200,000 200,000
{Note 2)

Notes:

7. The options are exercisable at HK$9.29 per share during the period from 10 February 2003 to 16 July 20117. The options can be
exercised up to 20 per cent. from 10 February 2003, up to 40 per cent. from 17 July 2003, up to 60 per cent. from 17 July 2004,
up to 80 per cent. from 17 July 2005 and in whole from 17 July 2008.

2. The options are exercisable at HK$9.20 per share during the period from 2 May 2003 to 1 May 2012. The options can be
exercised up to one-third from 2 May 2003, up to two-thirds from 2 May 2004 and in whole from 2 May 2005.

i




Interests in associated corporations

1. Interests in shares and underlying shares of Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited
Equity
Shares derivatives
Percentage
Discretionary of aggregate
Beneficial  trust founder & Spouse or Controlled Share aptions Aggregate interests to
Name of Director owner  trust beneficiary  child under 18 corporation (Note) interests issued capital
Raymond Kwok Ping-luen —  1,0795615,895* - - 75,000 1,079,590,895 44,96
Michael Worg Yick-kam 70,904 - - — 225,000 295,904 0.01
Ernest Lai Ho-kai - - - - 36,000 — 0.001
Eric Li Ka-cheung — — — 18,000 — 18,000 0.0007
Ng Leung-sirg - — 5,000 — — 5,000 0.0002

*Note: Of these shares, Messrs. Walter Kwok Ping-sheung, Thomas Kwok Ping-kwong and Raymond Kwok Ping-luen were deemed
to be interested in 1,056,338, 347 shares, which represented the same interests and were therefore duplicated amongst these
three persong for the purpose of the SFO.

Note: share options

Cancelled/
Exercise price  Outstanding at Granted Exercised Lapsed  QOutstanding at
Name of Director Date of grant HKS 1July2002  duringtheyear  during the vear  during the year 30 June 2003
Raymond Kwok Ping-luen 16 July 2001 70.00 75,000 - - - 75,000
Michael Wong Yick-kam 15 February 2000 70.00 150,000 — — — 150,000
16 July 2001 70.00 75,000 - - - 75,000
Erest Lai He-kai 16 July 2001 70.00 36,000 — — — 36,000

All options granted and accepted can.be exercised up to one-third during the second year from the date of grant, up to two-thirds during
the third year from the date of grant, and in whole or in part during the fourth and fifth years from the date of grant, thereafter, the
relevant options will expire.

2, Interests in shares and underlying shares of SUNeVision Holdings Ltd.

Equity

Shares derivatives
Percentage
Discretionary of aggregate
Beneficlal  trust founder & Spouse or Controlled Share options Aggregate interests to
Name of Direstor owner  trust beneficiary  child under 18 corporation (Note) interests issued capital
Raymond Kwok Ping-luen - 1,742,500% - — 1,105,000 2,847,500 0.14
Michael Wong Yick-kam 100,000 - - — 540,000 40,000 0.03
Andrew So Sing-tak — — - — 400,000 — 0.02

*Note: Of these shares, Messrs. Walter Kwok Ping-sheung, Thomas Kwok Ping-kwong and Raymond Kwok Ping-luen were deemed
to be interested in 1,070,000 shares, which represented the same interests and are therefore duplicated amongst these three
persons for the purpose of the SFO.




Note: share options

Cancelled/

Exercise price Qutstanding at Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding at

Name of Director Date of grant HKS 1 July 2002 dUring the year  during the year  during the year 30 June 2003
Raymond Kwok Pingduen 28 March 2000 10.38 755,000 - - - 755,000
7 April 2001 2.34 350,000 - - - 350,000

Michael Wong Yick-kam 28 March 2000 10.38 360,000 - - — 360,000
7 April 2001 2.34 180,000 - - — 180,000

Andrew So Sing-tak 8 July 2002 143 - 400,000 - — 400,000

The above share options are exercisable in accordance with the terms of the relevant share option scheme and conditions of grant.

3. Interests in shares of other associated corporations

Mr. Raymaond Kwok Ping-luen had the following interests in the shares of the following associated corporations:

Attributable Actual

percentage percentage

Attributable of shares in Actual of interests

Name of Beneficial holding through issue through holding through in issued
associated corporation owner corporation corporation corporation shares
Superindo Company Limited 10 — — — 10
Super Fly Company Limited 10 — —_ — 10
Splendid Kai Limited — 2,500%* 25 1,500 18
Hung Carom Company Limited — 25%* 25 15 15
Tinyau Company Limited — 1x* 50 1 50
Open Step Limited — g* 80 4 40

**Note: Messrs. Walter Kwok Ping-sheung, Thomas Kwok Ping-kwong and Raymond Kwok Ping-luen were deemed to be interested in
these shares, which represented the same interests and were therefore duplicated amongst these three persons for the
purpose of the SFO. Those shares were held by corporations in which they were entitled to control the exercise of one-third or
more of the voting rights in the general meetings of those corporations.

The interests of the Directors and chief exscutive in the share options of the Company and its associated corporations
are being regarded for the time being as unlisted physically settled equity derivatives. The details of the share options of
the Company are stated under the Share Option Schemes section below.

Save as disclosed above, at 30 June 2003, none of the Directors and chief executive (including their spouses and
children under 18 years of age) and their respective associates had or deemed to have any interests or short positions in
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company, its subsidiaries or any of its associated corporations that were
required to be entered into the register kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or were required to be
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Part XV of
the SFO or pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies.
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Other than the share options as mentioned above, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares or debentures of the Company or of any other body corporate.
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Upon the cessation of the Group's Internet service provision business during the year, which was previously regarded as
competir.g with SUNeVision Holdings Ltd., an associated corporation of the Company and of whose board Messrs.
Raymond Kwok Ping-luen, Michael Wong Yick-kam and Andrew So Sing-tak, Directors of the Company, are also directors,
none of the Directors of the Company has any interest in any business which may compete with the business of the
Group.

Share Cpilon Schemaes

A new share option scheme has been adopted by the Company on 15 November 2002 (the “New Share Option Scheme”)
to replace the share option scheme which had been adopted on 17 October 1996 (the "Old Share Option Scheme”) to
comply with the requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange {the "Listing
Rules”). The Company may grant options to the participants to subscribe for shares of the Company pursuant to the
terms as set out in the New Share Option Scheme. A summary of the terms of the New Share Option Scheme will be
set out below.

At 30 June 2003, the following share options granted to the Directors during the year pursuant to the New Share Option
Scheme were still outstanding:

Exercised Cancellsd/
Exercise price No. of during Lapsed during Outstanding at
Name of Dirsctor Date of grant HKS  options grantsd  Exercise period the year the year 30 June 2003
Douglas Li 10 February 2003 9.29 5,000,000 10 February 2003 - — 5,000,000
to 16 July 2011
Patrick Chan Kai-lung 10 February 2003 9.20 200,000 2 May 2003 - - 200,000
to 1 May 2012

The closirg price of the shares of the Company as quoted by the Stock Exchange on 7 February 2003, the trading day preceding the
date of grant of the above options was HK$8.55.

Other than the options stated above, no options had been granted by the Company to the other participants pursuant to
the New Share Option Scheme.




The Old Share Option Scheme was terminated by the Company on 15 November 2002. Upon termination of the Old
Share Option Scheme, no further options could be granted thereunder but in all other respects, the provisions of the Old
Share Option Scheme shall remain in force and all options granted prior to termination shall continue to be valid and
exercisable in accordance therewith. The following shows the movement during the year ended 30 June 2003 of the
share options granted under the Old Share Option Scheme:

Cancelled/
Exercise price Outstanding at ~ Granted during  Exercised during  Lapsed during ~ Outstanding at

Date of grant HKS Exercise period 1 July 2002 the year the year the year 30 June 2003

3 December 1998 16.10 1 January 1897 53,000 - - 53,000 -
to 31 December 2003

14 April 1998 20.60 14 April 1999 812,500 - - 812,500 -
to 13 April 2005

17 November 1998 27.70 17 November 2000 1,609,500 - - 1,609,500 -
to 16 November 2007

22 Mareh 2000 25.50 22 March 2001 100,000 - - 100,000 -
to 21 March 2007

13 July 2001 .20 13 July 2002 100,000 - - 100,000 -
to 12 July 2008

17 July 2001 9.29 17 July 2002 5,000,000 — — 5,000,000 -
t0 16 July 2011

19 March 2002 8.97 19 March 2003 100,000 - - 100,000 —
to 18 March 2009

2 May 2002 9.20 2 May 2003 200,000 - - 200,000 -

to 1 May 2012

All the remaining and unexercised share options lapsed automatically upon the completion of the mandatory general
offer by Cellular 8 Holdings Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited, pursuant to the
terms of the Old Share Option Scheme.

Save as disclosed above, no share options were granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the year.
Valuation of the share options granted during the year

In assessing the value of the share options granted during the year ended 30 June 2003, the Black-Scholes option
pricing model adjusted for dividends (the “Black-Scholes Model") was used. The Black-Scholes Model is one of the
generally accepted methodologies used to calculate the value of options and is one of the recommended option pricing
models set out in Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. The variables of the Black-Scholes Model include:

. expected life of the options;
. risk-free interest rate;
. expected volatility; and

J expected dividend to be paid by the Company, if any.
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In assessing the value of the share options granted during the year to Directors, the variables of the Black-Scholes

Model! andl its values are listed as follows:

Expected Expected
Grantee Grant date Expected life Risk-free rate volatility dividend yield
Douglas Li 10 Feb 2003 6 years 3.66% 29.10% 1.31%
Patrick Chan Kai-lung 10 Feb 2003 6 years 3.66% 29.10% 1.31%

(a)  The expected life is measured from the date of grant (the “Measurement Date").

(b)  The risk-free rate applied to the Black-Scholes Model represents the yield of the Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes
corresponding to the expected life of the options as at the Measurement Date.

{c)  The expected volatility used in the calculation represents the standard deviation of the daily closing share prices of
the Company for the last twelve months from the Measurement Date.

(d)  The expected dividend represents the average dividend yield for the four years from 1999 to 2003.

Using the Black-Scholes Model in assessing the value of share options granted during the year, the options would have
an aggregate value of approximately HK$12,232,402 represented as follows:

Estimated value of

Estimated value options granted

Number of share options per option during the year

granted during the year HK$ HK$

Douglas Li 5,000,000 2.35 11,756,471
Patrick Chan Kai-lung 200,000 2.38 475,931
Total 5,200,000 12,232,402

No adjustment has been made for possible future forfeiture of the options. No charge is recognised in the profit and loss
account in respect of the value of options granted during the year. The share options granted will be recognised in the
balance sheet at the time when the share options are exercised. Share capital will be credited at par for each share
issued upon the exercise of share options, with share premium credited at the excess of net proceeds received over
total share capital credited.

It should be noted that the value of options calculated using the Black-Scholes Model is based on various assumptions
and is only an estimate of the value of share options granted during the year. It is possible that the financial benefit
accruing to the grantee of an option will be considerably different from the value determined under the Black-Scholes
Model.

A summary of the principal terms of the New Share Option Scheme is set out below pursuant to the requirements as
contained in Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules:

(@  Purpose

The purpose of the New Share Option Scheme is to reward participants who have made a valuable contribution to
the growth of the Group and to enable the Group to recruit and/or to retain employees who are regarded as
valuable to the Group or are expected to be able to contribute to the business development of the Group.




(f)

Participants

Any employee, agent, consultant or representative of the Company or any of the subsidiaries, including any director
of the Company or any of the subsidiaries who has made valuable contribution to the growth of the Group based
on his work experience, industry knowledge, performance, business caonnections or other relevant factors, will be
eligible to participate in the Scheme at the invitation of the Directors,

Maximum number of shares available for issue

The Company can issue options so that the total number of shares that may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under all the share option schemes does not in aggregate exceed 10 per cent. of the shares in issue
on the date of adoption of the New Share Option Scheme. The Company may renew this limit at any time, subject
to shareholders’ approval and the issue of a circular and in accordance with the Listing Rules provided that the
number of shares to be issued upon exercise of all cutstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under all
the share option schemes does not exceed 30 per cent, of the shares in issue from time to time.

At 23 September 2003, the number of shares issuable upon the exercise of the options granted pursuant to the
New Share Option Scheme is 5,200,000 shares which represents approximately 0.89 per cent. of the issued
ordinary share capital of the Company.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The maximum entitlement for any participant is that the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of options granted and 10 be granted in any 12-month period up to the date of the latest grant does not
exceed 1 per cent. of the relevant class of shares in issue.

Time of exercise of option

No option may be exercised later than 10 years after it has been granted and no option may be granted more than
10 years after the date on which the Scheme is adopted by the Company in general meeting.

Payment on acceptance of option

Acceptance of offer to grant an option shall be sent in writing together with a remittance in favour of the Company
of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant must be received by the secretary of the Company within 28
days from the date of the making of such offer.

Basis of determining the exercise price

The option price per share payable upon the exercise of any option will be determined by the Directors upon the
grant of such option. It will be at least the higher of (i) the average closing price of a share as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the day of offer
of such option; (i) the closing price of a share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the day
of offer of such option, which must be a business day; and (iii) the nominal value of a share.

Remaining life of the Scheme

The New Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing from the adoption
of the Scheme on 15 November 2002.
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A summary of the principal terms of the Old Share Option Scheme is set out below pursuant to the regquirements as
contained in Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules:

(a)

Participants

The Directors of the Company may, at their discretion, invite employees, including executive directors, of the
Company and/or any of its subsidiaries (the "Employees”), to take up options to subscribe for shares of the
Company.

Maximum number of shares available for issue

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be granted (including shares in respect of which
options, whether exercised or still outstanding, have already been granted) under the Old Share Option Scheme
(or under any other share option scheme of the Company pursuant to which options may from time to time be
granted to the Employees) is that number which represénts 10 per cent. of the issued ordinary share capital of the
Company from time to time, excluding for this purposé shares issued on exercise of options granted pursuant to
the Old Share Option Scheme.

At Z3 September 2003, no options are outstanding under the Old Share Option Scheme.
Maximum entitlement of each participant

No option may be granted to any one person which if exercised in full would result in the total number of shares
already issued and issuable to him under all the options previously granted to him and the said option exceeding
25 per cent. of the maximum aggregate number of shares calculated in accordance with paragraph (b) above.

Timz of exercise of option

The period during which an option may be exercised will be determined by the Directors in their absoclute discretion,
sava that no cption may be exercised later than 10 years after it has been granted.

Payment on acceptance of option

A remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant of an option is required to
be paid by the grantee upon acceptance of the option, and such remittance shall in no circumstances be refundable.

Basis of determining the exercise price

The subscription price of a share in respect of any particular option granted under the Old Share Option Scheme
will be such price as the Directors in their absolute discretion determine, save that such price will not be less than
a specified minimum. Such minimum price is whichever is the higher of: (i) the nominal value of a share; and {ii) 80
per cent. of the average of the closing prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange on the five days immediately
preceding the date of grant of the option on which there were dealings in the shares on the Stock Exchange.

The: minimum price was amended by the new requirements of the Listing Rules effected on 1 September 2001,
being the higher of: (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on
the date of grant, which must be a business day; and (i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant.

Remaining life of the Scheme

The Old Share Option Scheme was terminated by the shareholders of the Company on 15 November 2002.




Disclosable interests and short positions of sharsholders under the SFO

At 30 June 2003, the following parties (other than the Directors and chief executive of the Company) had interests of 5
per cent. or more in the shares and undertying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO or as notified to the Company:

Percentage

of shares

Number of shares to issued

Name of shareholder Note interested share capital

Cellular 8 Holdings Limited (“Cellular 8"} 1and?2 283,670,075 43.66

Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited ("SHKP") 1Tand?2 298,091,397 51.13

Marathon Asset Management Limited 42,692,873 7.32
Notes:

1. For the purposes of the SFO, the interest of Cellular 8 in the 283,670,075 shares of the Company noted above against the name

of Cellular 8 is also attributed to SHKP on the basis that SHKP controls one-third or more of Cellular 8. The number of shares
noted above against the name of SHKP therefore duplicates the interest of Cellular 8.

2. For the purposes of the SFO, the same interest of Cellular 8 is also attributed to those subsidiaries of SHKP through which SHKP
holds its interest in Cellular 8. These subsidiaries are TFS Development Company Limited and Fourseas Investments Limited.

Save as disclosed above, no other parties had registered as having an interest of 5 per cent. or more in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company or having short positions as recorded in the register kept under section 336 of the
SFO.

Purchase, sale or redempticn of shares

During the year ended 30 June 2003, the Company repurchased 3,107,500 shares on the Stock Exchange. These
repurchased shares were subsequently cancelled. Please refer to note 24(b) to the financial statements for details of the
repurchases.

The aggregate price of the repurchased shares (before expenses) was HK$25,369,575 of which HK$25,058,825 was
charged against the share premium. A sum equivalent to the nominal value of the repurchased shares, amounting to
HK$310,750 was transferred from retained profits to the capital redemption reserve.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year ended 30 June 2003 was there any purchase, sale or redemption by
the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, of the Company’s shares.

Pre-emptive rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under either the Company’s Bye-laws or the laws in Bermuda.

Wenagement contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.
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The percentages of the Group's purchases attributable to major suppliers are as follows:

Percentage of purchases attributable to the Group's largest supplier 19
Percentage of purchases attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers 39

None of the Directors and their associates had an interest in the major suppliers noted above.

During the year, the Group sold less than 30 per cent. of its total goods and services to its five largest customers.

1. Certain related party transactions as disclosed in note 28 to the financial statements also constituted connected
transactions. The following transactions between certain connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) and
the Company have been entered intc and/or are ongoing for which the Stock Exchange has, subject to certain
conditions, granted to the Company waivers from strict compliance with the relevant requirements of the Listing
Rules.

{a)  Certain subsidiaries and associates of Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited ("SHKP"), the substantial shareholder
of the Company, have leased premises to the Group for use as offices, retail shops and warehouses and
have granted licences to the Group for the installation of base stations, antenna and telephone cables on
certain premises owned by them. For the year ended 30 June 2003, rental and licence fees paid and payable
totalled HK$55,716,000.

(b} Certain wholly-owned subsidiaries of SHKP provided general insurance services to the Group. For the year
ended 30 June 2003, insurance premiums paid and payable were HK$7,747,000.

(c)  Certain wholly-owned subsidiaries of SHKP have provided consultancy services to the Group. For the year
ended 30 June 2003, there were no such transactions and so no consultancy fees were paid.

(d}  Certain subsidiaries of SHKP have contracted with the Group to provide leased line and IT outsourcing
services respectively. For the year ended 30 June 20083, the leased line rentals and IT outsourcing services
fees paid were HK$120,000 and HK$503,000 respectively,

(e)  New-Alliance Asset Management {Asia) Limited, an associate of SHKP, has been appointed as the investment
manager of the Group's Provident Scheme since October 1999. For the year ended 30 June 2003, no fee
was paid by the Group as New-Alliance Management (Asia) Limited was remunerated by way of fee levied
on funds under management.

(f) ~ British Telecommunications Plc., a substantial shareholder of the Company until 7 January 2003, and its
subsidiary have provided consultancy services to the Group. For the year ended 30 June 2003, the consultancy
fees paid were HK$279,000.

The above transactions have been reviewed by the Company’s Independent Non-Executive Directors. The
Indspendent Non-Executive Directors confirmed that these transactions were entered into by the Company in the
ordinary course of business and on normal commercial terms or terms that were fair and reasonable so far as the
shareholders of the Company are concerned.

The Independent Non-Executive Directors also confirmed that the transactions were entered into in accordance
with the terms of the agreements governing such transactions or on terms no less favourable to the Group than
terms available to or from independent third parties and that the aggregate amounts of the transactions for the
financial year ended 30 June 2003 had not exceeded the relevant maximum amount capped for each category.




2. On 1 September 2000, a subsidiary of the Company, SmarTone (BVI) Limited subscribed for a 72 per cent. interest
in the share capital of SmarTone Delta Asia (BVI) Limited and the remaining 28 per cent. interest was subscribed
for by Delta Asia Group (Holdings) Limited.

Subsequent to the establishment of SmarTone Delta Asia (BVI) Limited, a shareholders agreement between
SmarTene (BVI) Limited and Delta Asia Group (Holdings) Limited was signed on 4 January 2001 whereby both
shareholders agreed to establish a wholly owned subsidiary SmarTone - Comunicagdes Mdveis, S.A. for engaging
in public mobile services in the Macau Special Administrative Region. The shareholders agreement also stipulated
that the shareholders would provide for the necessary financing, either through external financing or by way of
shareholders’ loan, to both SmarTone Delta Asia (BVI) Limited and SmarTone — Comunicagdes Mdveis, S.A. in
proportion to their respective shareholding. The amount of non-interest bearing loans due to SmarTone {BVI)
Limited at the balance sheet date was HK$46,835,000.
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The written terms of reference which describe the authority and duties of the Audit Committee were prepared and
adopted with reference to “A Guide for the Formation of an Audit Committee” published by Hong Kong Society of
Accountants.

The Audit Committee of the Company held a meeting on 8 September 2003 and reviewed the full year financial statements
and reports of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2003. The Committee was content that the accounting policies of
the Group are in accordance with the current best practice in Hong Kong. The Committee found no unusual items that
were omitted from the financial statements and was satisfied with the disclosures of data and explanations shown in
the financial statements.

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers whao retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment.
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Code of Best Practice

In the opinion of the Directors, during the accounting period covered by this annual report, the Group has complied with
the Code of Best Practice as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules except that the Non-Executive Directors were
not appointed for specific terms. However, the Non-Executive Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

The financial information disclosed in this report complies with the disclosure requirements of Appendix 16 of the
Listing Rules.

On behalf of the Board
Raymond Kwok Ping-luen
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 September 2003







DIRECTORS AND
MIANAGEMENT BXECUTIVES PROEILE

Directors
Raymond Kwok Ping-tuen, Chairman & Non-Executive Director

Mr. Raymond Kwok {aged 50), was appointed as Director of the Company in April 1392. He holds a Master of Arts
degree in Law from Cambridge University, a Master's degree in Business Administration from Harvard University and an
Honorary Doctorate degree in Business Administration from The Open University of Hong Kong. He is Vice Chairman
and Managing Director of Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of SUNeVision Holdings
Ltd. and a director of The Kowloon Motor Bus Holdings Limited, Route 3 (CPS) Company Limited and Airport Freight
Forwarding Centre Company Limited.

In civic activities, Mr. Kwok is a non-executive director of the Securities and Futures Commission, a director of The Real
Estate Developers Association of Hong Kong, a member of the General Committee of The Hong Kong General Chamber
of Commerce, a member of the Hong Kong Port Development Council, Vice Chairman of the Council of The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. He is also Chairman of the Management Committees of the Police Children’s Education Trust
and the Police Education and Welfare Trust.

Douglas Li, Executive Director & Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Douglas Li (aged 49), was appointed Chief Executive Officer of the Group in July 20071. Mr. Li had served as SmarTone's
founding CEO from its inception in 1992 until 1996. During that time with the Company, Mr. Li oversaw the rapid
expansion and service innovations that laid the foundation for what SmarTone is today. In addition to his experience in
mobile communications, Mr. Li has considerable experience in corporate finance and direct investment, Mr. Li graduated
in Pharmacology from the University of London and is a Chartered Accountant. He worked for KPMG Peat Marwick in
both London and Hong Kong, and joined Morgan Grenfell in Hong Kong in 1986. In 1989 Mr Li joined Sun Hung Kai
Properties Limited and was responsible for corporate finance, direct investment and new business development. Mr. Li
was Managing Director of Suez Asia Holdings in Hong Kong until he re-joined SmarTone in July 2001.

Patrick Chan Kai-lung, £xecutive Director

Mr. Patrick Chan (aged 43), was appointed Director of the Group in October 1996. Mr. Chan was the manager of the
Strategic Development Department of Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited ("SHKP ") before his appointment as Executive
Director of the Group in March 2002. Prior to joining SHKP in 1990, he held various positions in the areas of research and
investment at leading international banking groups. From December 1994 to May 1996, he was seconded as a full-time
member to the Central Policy Unit of the Hong Kong Government. He has over 17 years’ experience in research,
investrnent, planning and investor relations. Mr. Chan holds a Bachelor of Economics (Hon.) degree from the University
of Sydney, Australia and a Master of Economics degree from the Australian National University.

Ernest Lai Ho-kai, Non-Executive Director

Mr. Ernest Lai (aged 50), was appointed Director of the Company in November 1998. Mr. Lai is the Company Secretary
of Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited.




Michael Wong Yick-kam, Non-Executive Director

Mr. Michael Wong (aged 51), was appointed Director of the Company in October 2001. He obtained his Bachelor's and
Master's degrees in Business Administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Wong was appointed an executive director of Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited responsible for strategic planning,
corporate development, infrastructure projects, financial investments and relations with the investment community. Mr.
Wong is Deputy Chairman of RoadShow Holdings Limited. He is also an executive director of SUNeVision Holdings Ltd.
and a non-executive director of USI Holdings Limited.

Andrew So Sing-tak, Non-Executive Director

Mr. Andrew So (aged 38), was appointed Director of the Company in April 2002. Mr. So is the Special Assistant to Mr.
Raymond Kwok, Vice Chairman and Managing Director of Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited (“SHKP"). He is involved in
developing SHKP’s iT-related businesses and formulating growth strategies for SUNeVision Holdings Ltd.

Mr. So halds both a BA from Harvard University and MBA from Harvard Business School and he has over 12 years’
experience in management and technology consulting, having worked extensively in the USA, UK, Hong Kong and
elsewhere in Asia, formulating and executing strategies for companies in diverse industries.

Prior to joining SHKP Group, Mr. So was Senior Vice President and Managing Director — Greater China, with Digitas Asia
Limited, subsidiary of a Nasdag-listed systems integrator and web solutions provider headquartered in Boston,
Massachusetts. He set up Digitas’ first office in Asia to serve giobal and local clients. Before that, Mr. So held the
position of Managirg Director - Telecommunications, with Scient, a technology solutions provider based in San Francisco,
where he led business development and solution delivery for Asian Telecom and Internet clients. Mr. So has also
worked for the international consulting and systems integration firms Accenture and Cap Gemini, in the USA and Europe.

Cheung Wing-yui, Non-executive Director

Mr. Cheung (aged 53), was appointed Director of the Company in March 2003. Mr. Cheung is a director of a number of
other publicly listed companies. He is also a non-executive director of SUNeVision Holdings Ltd.

Mr. Cheung is the Vice-Chairman of the Mainland Legal Affairs Committee of the Law Society of Hong Kong and is a
Council Member of The Open University of Hong Kong. Mr. Cheung received a Bachelor of Commerce degree in
accountancy from the University of New South Wales, Australia. He is a certified practising accountant of the Australian
Society of CPAs. Mr. Cheung has been a practising solicitor in Hong Kong since 1979 and is a partner of the law firm
Woo, Kwan, Lee & Lo. He was admitted as a solicitor in the United Kingdom and as an advocate and solicitor in Singapore.

Eric Li Ka-cheung, JP, /ndependent Non-Executive Director

The Hon. Eric Li (aged 50), GBS, OBE, J.P, LLD, DSocSc., B.A., FHKSA, FCA, FCPAA, FCIS, was appointed Director of
the Company in October 1996. Mr. Li is the senior partner of Li, Tang, Chen & Co., Certified Public Accountants, and an
independent non-executive director of the Kowloon Motor Bus Holdings Limited, Wong's International (Holdings) Limited,
CATIC International Holdings Limited, SIIC Medical Science and Technology (Group) Limited, Hang Seng Bank Limited,
China Vanke Co., Ltd. and China Resources Enterprise, Limited. Mr. Li is a member of the Legislative Council of Hong
Kong, Chairman of its Public Accounts Committee and member of The 10th National Committee of Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference. He is also a past president of the Hong Kong Society of Accountants.




Ng Leung-sing, /ndependent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Ng {aged 54), was appointed Director of the Company in June 1997. Mr. Ng is a member of the Legislative Councll
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region ("HKSAR") and the Vice Chairman of The Chiyu Banking Corporation
Limited.

Mr. Ng had been appointed as the Chinese Representative of the Sino-British Land Commission and the trustee of
HKSAR's Government Land Fund from 1988 to 1997. He was the executive director and general manager of The China
and South Sea Bank Limited, Hong Kong from 19390 to 1898. Mr. Ng is a member of the Corporate Contribution Programme
Qrganisation Committee of the Hongkong Community Chest since 1992. Moreover, Mr. Ng has been appointed as a
member of the Hong Kong Housing Authority since 1996. in the same year, he was elected as a member of the Provisional
Legislative Council of HKSAR and was re-elected in the first Legislative Council in 1998.

Mr. Ng has been a director of Bank of China Group Charitable Foundation Limited since 1996, a member of Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Advisory Committee since 1998, and a member of Admission of Talents Scheme Selection
Committee since 1999. In the same year, Mr. Ng was a committee member of Hong Kong Council of Social Services,
and a member of The Council & The Court of The Lingnan University. Mr. Ng is also a8 member of Fisheries Development
Loan Fund Advisory Committee since 2001.

Sachio Semmoto, /ndependent Non-Executive Director

Dr. Sachio Semmoto {aged 61), was appointed Director of the Company in September 2002. He is a graduate of Kyoto
University, Japan and received his MS and Ph.D. (Electricel Engineering) from University of Florida, US in 1968 and 1971,
respectively.

Dr. Semmoto is Founder and CEQ, of eAccess, Ltd., IP/telecom start-up providing high-speed broadband
telecommunication services using xDSL technology. Prior to that, he spent 30 years in senior management positions,
including Nippon Telephone & Telegraph {NTT), Kyocera and DDI Corp. (KDDI) which he co-founded as Executive Vice
President in 1984. From 1996-2000, he was a Professor at the Graduate School of Business Administration, Keio University
in Tokyo and a Visiting Professor at Haas School of Business, University of California, Berkeley in 2000. He is a frequent
lecturer at Harvard, Stanford and University of Tokyo.

He is also a Fellow of the Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers. He co-founded the Japan Academic Society
of Ventures and Entrepreneurs as Vice President and has been supporting high tech start-ups in Japan, Hong Kong and
the US from high-level managing positions.
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Stephen Chau
Chief Technology Officer

Mr. Stephan Chau is a technology veteran in telecommunications with over 17 years’ experience. Prior to joining SmarTone,
he was with HK Telecom CSL for more than 8 years, responsible for radio network planning and development. From
1995 to 1996, Mr. Chau was a member of the Radio Spectrum Advisory Committee under the Office of the
Telecomrnunications Authority. He was also @ member of the Advisory Committee of the Information Engineering
Department of the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is a member of the Institute of Electrical Engineers, UK and the
Institute of Engineers, Australia, as well as a Chartered Engineer of Institute of Electrical Engineers, UK. Mr. Chau holds
a Bachelor degree in Electronic Engineering from the Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Rita Hui
General Manager, Human Resources

Ms. Rita Hui has more than 21 years’ experience in human resaurces, administration and sales operations, as well as
logistics gained from local and multi-national corporations. Before joining SmarTone in 1995, Ms. Hui was the Regional
Personnal Manager for the Asia Pacific zone of an international manufacturing company where she had served for more
than 10 vears. She is a member of Education Working Party of the Hong Kong Retail Management Association. Ms. Hui
was alsc a committee member of Elite Development Programme of the Chinese University of Hong Kong. She received
her Joint Diploma in Personnel Management from the Hong Kong Polytechnic and the Hong Kong Management
Association.

Alex Ip
Chief Executive Officer of SmarTone (Macau)

Dr. Alex Ip has over 15 years' experience in international telecommunications. Prior to joining SmarTone, Dr. Ip was in
charge of the Internet and multimedia strategic relations in Asia Pacific for British Telecom ("BT"), with responsibility for
developing BT's investment strategy and business in the region. Dr. Ip holds a Ph.D. in Data Communications from
Loughborough University in the UK and is a Chartered Engineer. He is also a member of the Institution of Electrical
Engineers and the Institute of Electrical and Electronic Engineers.

Chris Lau
Directeor of Future Services

Mr. Chris Lau has extensive experience in telecommunications in North America and Hong Kong. Before joining SmarTone
in 1992, he had held various telecommunications product and services development positions in both mobile and fixed
netwo k operators in Canada and Hong Kong for over 11 years. Mr. Lau holds a Bachelor degree in Electrical and
Efectrenic Engineering from the Institute of Science and Technology, University of Manchester, England, and is a member
of the Institute of Electrical Engineers and Association of Professional Engineers of Ontario, Canada.




William Yeung

Director of Customers Division

Mr. William Yeung has more than 12 years’ experience in the telecommunications industry. Prior to joining SmarTone,
Mr. Yeung was the General Manager of Personal Communications and Retail Division in Tricom Telecom Limited. He
holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from Hong Kong Baptist University, a Master of Business Administration degree from
University of Strathclyde, United Kingdom and a Master of Science degree in Electronic Commerce & Internet Computing
from the University of Hong Kong.
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SN ANCIAL SUMMARY

(HK$ millions except per share amounts)

Year ended 30 June or as at 30 June

2003 2002 2001 2000 1899
Profit and loss account
Turnover 2,832 2,401 2,485 2,894 3,074
Profit/{loss) attributable to shareholders 408 115 (284) (363) 604
Earnings/(loss) per share (HK$) 0.70 0.20 (0.47) (0.60) 1.21
Dividends
Total dividend 2,315 41 Nil 96 244
Total per share for the year (HKS$) 0.47 0.07 Nil 0.16 0.45
Special cash dividend per share {HK$) 3.50 Nil Nil Nit Nil
Balance sheet
Non-current assets 2,415 2,458 2,100 2,327 2,451
Net current assets 2,977 2,691 2,993 3,137 3,461
Net assets 5,392 5,149 5,093 5,464 5,912
Share capital 58 58 59 60 80
Reserves 5,314 5,074 5,028 5,404 5,852
Shareholders' funds 5,372 5,132 5,087 5,464 5,912
Minority interest 20 17 6 — —
5,392 5,149 5,093 5,464 5,912
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To the shareholders of

SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermudea with limited liability)

We have audited the accounts on pages 49 to 82 which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors
The Company's directors are responsible for the preparation of accounts which give a true and fair view. In preparing accounts
which give a true and fair view it is fundamental that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our audit, on those accounts and to report our opinion solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Section 80 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing Standards issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants.
An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the accounts. It also
includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the accounts, and
of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the circumstances of the Company and the Group, consistently applied and
adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in order
to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as to whether the accounts are free from material misstatement.
In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the accounts. We believe that

our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion the accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 30 June 2003 and
of the profit and cash flows of the Group for the year then ended and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 23 September 2003



CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS

ACCOUNTT

For the year ended 30 June 2003

2003 2002
Note HK$000 HK$000
Turnover 2 2,831,538 2,401,252
Cost of goods sold and services provided 4 (873,581) (582,108)
Gross profit 1,957,957 1,819,144
Other revenues 2,8 72,140 86,108
Other operating expenses 5 (1,606,392) (1,673,659)
Impairment of fixed and other assets 6 — (122,495)
Operating profit 8 423,705 109,098
Share of loss of an associate (16,620) (3)
Profit for the year 407,085 109,095
Minority interest 730 6,074
Profit attributable to shareholders 12,26 407,815 115,169
Dividends
Attributable for the year 13 274,017 40,777
Special cash dividend 13 2,040,552 —
Earnings per share
Basic 14 HK$0.70 HK$0.20
Diluted 14 N/A NA




CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHIEET
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As at 30 June 2003
2003 2002
Note HK$000 HK$000
ASSETS
Non-currant assets
Fixed assets 15 1,703,220 1,762,869
Interest in an associate 16 3,050 18,939
Investments 17 701,092 682,321
Deferred axpenditure 18 7,554 4,304
2,414,916 2,458,433
Current zssets
Inventories 20 29,605 34,456
Investments 17 53,387 —
Trade recsivables 21 103,200 172,336
Deposits and prepayments 100,993 148,852
Other receivables 25,034 23,897
Cash and bank balances 22 3,212,864 2,943,507
3,525,083 3,323,048
Current liabilities
Trade payables 23 145,902 93,271
Other pavables and accruals 297,482 396,603
Customers' deposits 26,878 43,193
Deferred income 78,058 89,833
Taxation — 8,992
548,320 631,892
Net current assets 2,976,763 2,691,156
Total assets less current liabilities 5,391,679 5,149,689
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital 24 58,301 58,435
Reserves 26 5,313,794 5,074,102
Shareholders’ funds 5,372,095 5,132,637
Minority interest 19,584 17,062
5,391,679 5,149,589

Raymond Kwok Ping-luen Douglas Li
Director Director
23 September 2003 23 September 2003




BALANCE SRIEET

As at 30 June 2003
2003 2002
Note HK$000 HK$000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Subsidiaries 19 6,096,084 4,702,834
Current assets
Other receivables 811 1,881
Cash and bank balances 22 390,807 524,467
391,618 526,348
Current liabilities
Other payables and accruals 488 16
Net current assets 391,130 526,332
Total assets less current liabilities 6,487,214 5,229,166
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital 24 58,301 58,435
Reserves 26 6,428,913 5,170,731
6,487,214 5,229,166
Raymond Kwok Ping-luen Douglas Li
Director Director

23 September 2003

23 September 2003
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CORNSOLIDATED CASFH FLOW STATEMIERNT
For the year ended 30 June 2003

2003 2002
Note HK$000 HK$000

Operating activities

Net cash inflow generated from operations 31 843,903 387,029

Hong Kong profits tax paid (14) (60)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 843,889 386,969
Investing activities

Purchases of fixed assets (395,523) (267,257)

Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 691 1,040

Deferred expenditure (14,960) (14,160)

Purchases of held-to-maturity debt securities (684,728) (682,108)

Proceeds of early redemption and disposal

of held-to-maturity debt securities 601,883 39,000

Additional advance to an associate {731) (5,950)

Purchases of equity securities (6,931) (15,600)

interest -eceived 90,762 75,110
Net cash outflow from investing activities {409,537) (869,925)
Financing activities

Contribution from a minority shareholder to a subsidiary company 3,262 17,671

Repurchases of shares (25,370} (69,636)

Decreasa/(increase) in pledges of bank deposits 133,263 (391,353)

Dividends paid (142,887) —
Net cash outflow from financing {31,732) {443,318)
Increase/(clecrease) in cash and cash equivalents 402,620 (926,274)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 2,418,105 3,344,379
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 2,820,725 2,418,105
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances 22 3,212,864 2,943,507
Less: pledged bank deposits 22 {392,139) (525,402)

2,820,725 2,418,105




CONSOQLIDATED STATEMENT OfF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 30 June 2003

Capital
Share Share redemption Contributed Retained
capital premium reserve surplus profits Total
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
Year ended 30 June 2002
1 July 2001 59,228 4,298,104 1,357 199,800 528,516 5,087,005
Repurchases of shares (793) (68,844) 793 — (793) (69,637)
Profit for the year — —_ — — 115,169 115,169
30 June 2002 58,435 4,229,260 2,150 199,800 642,892 5,132,537
Year ended 30 June 2003
1 July 2002 58,435 4,229,260 2,150 199,800 642,892 5,132,637
Repurchases of shares 311) (25,059} 311 — (311) {25,370)
Issue of new shares in
lieu of cash dividend 177 14,316 — — (14,493) —
Payment of 2002 final dividend — — — — (26,284) (26,284)
Payment of 2003 interim dividend — - — — (116,603) (116,603)
Profit for the year —_ — — — 407,815 407,815
30 June 2003 58,301 4,218,517 2,461 199,800 893,016 5,372,095




NIOTES TO THIE FINANCGCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2003

1 Basis of preparation and principal accounting policies
The: basis of preparation and principal accounting policies adopted in these consolidated financial statements are set out below:

a Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and comply with accounting standards issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants
("HKSA).

The Group has adopted in the current year the following new or revised Statements of Standard Accounting Practice ('SSAPs')
issued by the HKSA which have been effective for accounting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2002:

SSAP 1 (revised) . Presentation of financial statements
SSAP 11 (revised) . Foreign currency translation

SSAP 15 (revised) . Cash flow statements

SSAP 33 . Discontinuing operations

SSAP 34 . Employee benefits

Adoption of the new or revised SSAPs has not had a material financial impact on these financial statements because the
Group was already following the recognition and measurement criteria specified therein. However, some presentations and
disclosures, including comparatives, have been revised or extended.

b Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 30
June. Subsidiaries are those entities in respect of which the Group contrals the composition of the board of directors,
controls more than half of the voting power or holds more than half of the issued share capital. The results of subsidiaries
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated profit and loss account from the effective date of
acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

All significant intercompany transactions and balances within the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary represents the difference between the proceeds of the sale and the Group's
share of its net assets together with any unamortised goodwill or goodwill teken to reserves and which was not previously
charged or recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside shareholders in the cperating results and net assets of subsidiaries.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for impairment losses. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.
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Basis of preparation and principal accounting policies (continued)

Associated company
An associated company is a company, not being a subsidiary, in which an equity interest is held for the long-term and in
whose management significant influence is exercised.

The consolidated profit and loss account includes the Group's share of the results of the associated company for the year, and
the consolidated balance sheet includes the Group's share of the net assets of the associated company.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investment in the associated company is stated at cost less provision for impairment
losses. The results of the associated company are accounted for by the Campany on the basis of dividends received and
receivable,

Equity accounting of losses is discontinued when the carrying amount of the investment in the associated company reaches
zero, unless the Group has incurred obligations or guaranteed obligations in respect of the associated company.

Goodwill
Goodwill is calculated as the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share of the net assets of
the acquired subsidiary or associated company at the date of acguisition.

Goodwill on acquisitions that occurred prior to 1 July 2001 was written off against reserves.

There have been no acquisitions by the Group during the years ended 30 June 2002 and 2003.

Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and, when necessary, accumulated impairment losses. Fixed
assets are depreciated at rates sufficient to write off their costs less accumulated impairment losses over their estimated
useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal annual rates adopted are as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings Over the lease term
Leasehold improvements Over the lease term
Network and testing equipment 10% - 33 4%
Computer, billing and office telephone equipment 20% - 33'%%
Other fixed assets 20% - 33'5%

The cost of the network comprises assets and equipment of the digital mobile radio telephone networks purchased at cost.
Depreciation of each network commences from the date of launch.

No depreciation is provided for any part of any network under construction, including the equipment therein.
Other fixed assets comprise motor vehicles, equipment, furniture and fixtures,

The gain or loss arising from the disposal or retirement of a fixed asset is the difference between the net sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the relevant asset and is recognised in the profit and loss account.

Major costs incurred in restoring fixed assets to their normal working condition are charged to the profit and loss account.
Improvements are capitalised and depreciated over their expected useful lives to the Group.

At each balance sheet date, both internal and external sources of information are considered to assess whether there is any
indication that any fixed assets are impaired in value. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated and where relevant, an impairment loss is recognised to reduce the asset to its recoverable amount. Such impairment
losses are recognised in the profit and loss account.
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For the year ended 30 June 2003

1

Basis of preparation and principal accounting policies (continued)

Telecommunications licence for third generation {'3G’} services

Expenditure on acquiring the Group’s 3G licence telecommunications spectrum in Hong Kong includes spectrum utifisation

fees payable for the allocation of specific spectrum and the annual royalties payable in accordance with the Group's 3G
licence. Such fees and rovyalties payable prior to the launch of commercial services are integral to the development and

construction of the related network and are deferred and included within fixed assets. Depreciation will be provided from the

commencement of service over the shorter of the remaining life of the licence or the estimated useful life of the fixed assets.

g Investments

(i)

(i)

Equity securities
Equity securities are stated at cost less any provision required for impairment loss.

The carrying amounts of individual investments are reviewed at each balance sheet date to assess whether the fair
values have declined below the carrying amounts. When a decline other than temporary has occurred, the carrying
amount of such securities will be reduced to its fair value. The impairment loss is recognised as an expense in the profit
and loss account.

The impairment loss is written back to profit and loss when the circumstances that led to the write-downs cease to
exist and there is a strong likelihood that the new circumstances will continue for the foreseeable future.

Held-to-maturity debt securities

Debt securities which are intended to be held until maturity are stated in the balance sheet at cost plus or minus any
discount or premium amortised to date. The discount or premium on acquisition is amortised over the period to maturity
and included as interest income or expense in the profit and loss account. Provision is made when there is a diminution
in value other than temporary.

The carrying amounts of held-to-maturity debt securities are reviewed at the balance sheet date in order to assess the
credit risk and whether the carrying amounts are expected 1o be recovered. Provisions are made when carrying amounts
are not expected to be recovered and are recognised in the profit and loss account.

Inventories

Inventories, comprising handsets and accessories, are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is calculated

on the weighted average basis. Net realisable value is determined on the basis of anticipated sales proceeds less estimated

selling expenses.

i)

(i)

Deferred expenditure

Licence application expenditure
Licence application expenditure is deferred and amortised over the term of the relevant licence.

Handset subsidies
The costs relating to handset subsidies provided to customers are deferred and amortised on a straight-line basis over
the average postpaid subscription fife of twelve months.
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Basis of preparation and principal accounting policies (continued)

Translation of foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
expressed in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are translated at rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date.
Exchange differences arising in these cases are dealt with in the profit and loss account.

The financial statements of subsidiaries expressed in foreign currencies are translated at rates of exchange ruling at the
balance sheet date. The profit and loss account is translated at an average rate whilst exchange differences are dealt with as
movements in reserves.

Trade receivables
Provision is made against trade receivables 1o the extent they are considered to be doubtful. Trade receivables in the balance
sheet are stated net of such provision.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost.

In the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and demand deposits with banks.

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is accounted for at the current taxation rate in respect of timing differences between profit as computed for
taxation purposes and profit as stated in the financial statements to the extent that a liability or an asset is expected to be
payable or recoverable in the foreseeable future.

Assets held under leases

fi) Finance leases
Leases that substantially transfer to the Group all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets, other than legal title,
are accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance lease, the lower of the fair value of the asset and the
present value of the minimum lease payments is recorded as an asset and a corresponding liability of the same amount
is recorded. Payments to the lessor are treated as consisting of capital and interest elements. Finance charges are
debited to the profit and loss account in proportion to the capital balances outstanding. Assets held under finance
leases are depreciated over the shorter of their estimated useful lives and the lease periods.

fil  Operating leases
Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets remain with the leasing company are
accounted for as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases net of any incentives received from the
leasing company are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the lease periods.
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For the year ended 30 June 2003

1

Basis of preparation and principal accounting policies (continued)

Contingent assets and liabilities
A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
oCcurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain events not wholly within the control of the Group.

Contingent assets are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements when an inflow of economic

benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-accurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can also
be a present obligation arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow of economic
resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured réliably,

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. When a change in the

probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised, net of discounts and allowances given, when it is probable that the economic benefits will accrue to

the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably on the following bases:
{i) sales of goods: when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer;

(i telecommunications, international direct dial and internet related services: when the service is rendered and based on
the usage of the Group's telecommunications networks and facilities;

(iiiy  irterest income: on a time proportion basis.

Telecommunications service revenue in respect of standard service plans billed in advance is deferred and included under

deferred income.

Retirement benefit costs

The Group participates in two defined contribution retirement schemes, an Occupational Retirement Scheme ('ORS0O’) and &
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme {('MPF'), for employees (together ‘the Schemes’). The assets of the Schemes are held
separately from those of the Group in independent administrated funds.

The Group's contributions to the Schemes are expensed as incurred. Contributions to the ORSO scheme are reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the Group's contributions.
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Basis of preparation and principal accounting policies (continued)

r Dividends

Dividends paid are accounted for as an appropriation of retained profits in the period in which paid. Dividends satisfied by

shares are accounted for as an issue of shares in the period of issue, with an appropriation of retained profits equal to the

market value of the shares at date of issue. No liability is recognised in the balance sheet for dividends proposed or declared

after the balance sheet date.

s Employee benefits

1}

fiii)

Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave attributable to service rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave, maternity or paternity leave and marriage leave are not recognised until the time
the leave is taken.

Profit sharing and bonus plans

Provisions are established for amounts payable within twelve months of the balance sheet date in respect of profit
sharing and bonus plans. Provisions are only recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation
arising from service rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

Employee share option schemes

Where share options are granted at the market price of the shares on the date of the grant, no compensation cost is
recognised in the profit and loss account. Where share options are granted at a discount to the market price, a
compensation cost is recognised in the profit and loss account based on that discount. When the share options are
exercised, the proceeds received net of any transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value} and share

premium.




For the year ended 30 June 2003

2 Turnover and other revenues
The Group is principally engaged in the provision of mobile telecommunications and related services and the sale of mobile telephones
and accessories. Revenues recognised during the year are as follows:

2003 2002
HK$000 HK$000
Turnover

Mobile and international telecommunications services 2,263,140 2,171,303
Mobile telephone and accessory sales ' 556,120 177,795
Internet services (note 7) 12,278 52,154
2,831,538 2,401,252

Other revenues
Interest income 72,140 86,108
Total revenues 2,903,678 : 2,487,360

3 Segment reporting
For the year ended 30 June 2003, more than ninety per cent. of the Group's turnover and operating profit were attributable to its
mobile communications operations in the Special Administrative Regions of Hong Kong and Macau. Accordingly, no analysis by
either business or geographical segment is included in these financial statements.

4 Cost of goods sold and services provided
2003 2002
HK$000 HK$000
Cos? of goods sold 552,499 228,197
Interconnect charges and international telecommunications services 280,254 316,143

Other 40,828 39,768

873,581 582,108




Other operating expenses

2003 2002
HK$000 HK$000
Network costs 456,022 459,430
Depreciation 399,946 410,348
Salary and related costs (including directors’ emoluments) 360,104 377,308
Sales and marketing expenses 158,990 176,820
Rental and utilities 106,090 118,058
Other operating expenses 123,463 119,595
LLoss on disposal of fixed assets 1,777 12,099
1,606,392 1,673,659

Impairment of fixed and other assets
2003 2002
HK$000 HK$000
Fixed assets - impairment losses —_ 96,082
Provision against interests in an associate and equity securities — 26,413
— 122,495

During the year ended 30 June 2002, the Group made an impairment charge of HK$96 million in respect of certain fixed assets of
its Internet service provider and other non-core businesses including associated onerous commitments. The Group also made an
impairment charge of HK$26 million in respect of its investments in technology funds.
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For the year ended 30 June 2003

7 Discontinued operation
During October to December 2002, the Group discontinued providing fixed broadband and narrowband Internet access services
('Internet Services') to its retall customers. The Group alsc entered into an arrangement with another Internet service provider to
ensure continuity of service to its former retail customers. The business was closed in June 2003. The turnover and results, cash

flows and assets and liabilities of the Internet Services business segment were as follows:

2003 2002
HK$000 HK$000
Turnover and results
Turnover 12,278 52,154
Interest income 2 8
Operating costs (10,477) (65,414)
Impairment of fixed assets - (67,884)
Operating profit/(loss) 1,803 (81,136)
Cash flows
Net operating cash (outflow)/inflow {1,445) 33,268
Net investing cash inflow/{outflow) 2 (33,248)
Total net cash (outflow)/inflow {1,443) 10
30 June 30 June
2003 2002
HK$000 HK$000
Assets and liabilities
Current assets 902 6,053
Total liabilities (718) (19,709)
Net assets/(liabilities) 184 (13,656)

The above assets and liabilities exclude intergroup payables and receivables.

The Group has not entered into any sale agreements for any assets of the discontinued operation. Accordingly, no profit or loss on

the disposal of any asset has arisen.




Operating profit
Operating profit is stated after crediting and charging:

2003 2002
HK$000 HK$000
Crediting
Interest income:
Listed investments 17,365 6,597
Net realised loss on disposal of listed debt securities (note 17) (6,336) —
Deposits with bank and other financial institutions 44,212 73,136
Other 16,899 6,375
72,140 86,108
Net exchange gain —_ 46
Charging
Depreciation:
Owned fixed assets 257,705 263,610
Leased fixed assets 142,241 146,738
399,946 410,348
Amortisation of deferred expenditure 11,710 40,703
Operating lease rentals for land and buildings,
transmission sites and leased lines 442,336 456,654
Loss on disposals of fixed assets 1,777 12,099
Auditors’ remuneration 1,070 1,305
Provision for inventories 1,811 6,528
Net exchange loss 268 —
Provision for bad and doubtful debts 18,848 11,827
Retirement benefit costs (note 10) 18,437 17,978
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g Emoluments of directors and senior management

a Directors’ emoluments
The aggregate amounts of emoluments payable to directors of the Company during the year are as follows:

2003 2002

HK$000 HK$000

Fees 1,105 660
Salaries and allowances 9,452 9,526
Bonuses 260 555
Pensions contributions 809 519
11,626 11,260

The directors’ emoluments for 2003 include nil {2002: HK$3,118,000) in respect of four directors (2002: six directors) who

resigned during the vear.

Included in the above directers’ fees are the emoluments of the independent non-executive directors of the Company of
HK$460,000 (2002: HK$160,000). No director received any emoluments from Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited, the ultimate
holding company of SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited, in respect of their services to the Group during the
year ended 30 June 2003.

None of the directors (2002: none) waived emoluments in respect of the financial year ended 30 June 2003. During the year,
no amounts have been paid by the Group to the directors as an inducement to join the Group or as compensation for loss of
office (2002: Nil).

During the year, 5,200,000 options were granted to the directors under the share option scheme adopted by the Company on
15 November 2002. These were to replace options under the previous scheme which had either been cancelled or lapsed
during the year ended 30 June 2003. Refer to note 25 - 'Employee share option schemes’ for details of options granted during

the year.

The emoluments of the directors fell within the following bands:

2003 2002

Number of Number of

HK$ directors directors
0-1,000,000 12 15
3,000,001 - 3,500,000 1 1
7,000,001 - 7,500,000 1 1

14 17
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Emoluments of directors and senior management (continued)

b Five highest paid individuals

In addition to the two (2002: two) highest paid directors above, there were three employees (2002: three employees) whose

emoluments were among the five highest in the Group. Details of the emoluments payable to these three employees (2002:

three employees) during the year are as follows:

2003 2002
HK$000 HK$000
Salaries and allowances 6,893 6,631
Bonuses 448 —
Pension contributions 624 593
7,965 7,224
The emoluments of these employees fell within the following bands:
2003 2002
Number of Number of
HK$ employees employees
2,000,001 - 2,500,000 1 2
2,500,001 - 3,000,000 2 1
3 3
Retirement benefits
2003 2002
HKS$000 HK$000
Scheme costs 21,054 23,341
Less: forfeited contributions (2,617} (5,362)
Net cost charged to profit and loss account 18,437 17,979

Contributions to the ORSO scheme by the Group and the employees are calculated as specified percentages of each employee’s

basic salary and are expensed as incurred. The Group's contributions may be reduced by contributions forfeited by those employees

who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the Group's contributions. At 30 June 2002 and 2003, all contributions to the ORSO

scheme forfeited by employees had been utilised by the Group to reduce its contributions payable.

A MPF scheme was established under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance in December 2000 and the

Group's employees may elect to join the MPF scheme. Both the Group and the employees are required to contribute 5 per cent. of

the employee’s relevant income with a maximum amount of HK$1,000 per month as a mandatory contribution. Employer's mandatory

contributions are expensed as incurred and vest 100 per cent. in the employees as soon as they are paid to the MPF scheme.
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11 Taxation
Nc provision for Hong Kong profits taxation has been made as the Group has sufficient tax losses brought forward to offset the
assessable profit for the year (2002: Nil).

Ths deferred -ax charge/(credit) for the year which has not been recognised in the profit and loss account is as follows:

2003 2002

HK$000 HK$000

Accelerated depreciation allowances 27,696 (52,166)
Tax losses 1,340 125,118
Otner timing differences (644) (4,220)
28,392 68,732

12 Profit/{loss) attributable to shareholders
Of the Group's profit for the year, a profit of HK$1,426,305,000 (2002: loss of HK$35,411,000) has been dealt with in the financial
stetements of the Company.

13 Dividends

2003 2002

HK$000 HK$000

Final, paid, of HK$0.07 per share (note a) — 40,777

Intarim, paid, of HK$0.20 per share (note b) 116,603 —

Final, proposed, of HK$0.27 per share (note ¢} 157,414 —

Attributable for the year 274,017 40,777

Special cash dividend, proposed, of HK$3.50 per share (note d} 2,040,552 —

2,314,569 40,777

Notes:

a At a meeting held on 24 September 2002, the Directors recommended the declaration of a final dividend of HK$0.07 per share for the year

ended 30 June 2002. This dividend was paid on 18 November 2002 and has been accounted for as an appropriation of retained profits for the
year ended 30 June 2003.

b At a meeting held on 11 March 2003, the Directors declared an interim dividend of HK$0.20 per share for the year ended 30 June 2003. The
interim dividend was paid on 11 April 2003 and has been accounted for as an appropriation of retained profits for the year ended 30 June 2003.

o At a meeting held on 23 September 2003, the Directors recommended the declaration of a final dividend of HK$0.27 per share for the year
ended 30 June 2003. This proposed dividend is not included as a dividend payable in the Group or Company balance sheet as at 30 June 2003,

but will be accounted for as an appropriation of retained profits for the year ending 30 June 2004.

d At a meeting held on 23 September 2003, the Directors recommended the declaration of a special cash dividend of HK$3.50 per share. This
proposed special cash dividend is not included as a dividend payable in the Group or Company balance sheet as at 30 June 2003, but will be
accounted for as an appropriation of retained profits and/or contributed surplus for the year ending 30 June 2004,
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Earnings per share

The calculation of earnings per share is based on the profit attributable to shareholders of HK$407,815,000 (2002: HK$115,163,000)
and on the weighted average number of 583,327,626 shares (2002: 588,929,496 shares) in issue during the year.

For the years ended 30 June 2002 and 2003, no diluted earnings per share is presented as there are no potentially dilutive shares
outstanding.

Fixed assets

Medium term Computer,
leasehold billing and
land and Network office Other Network
buildings in Leasehold and testing telephone fixed under
Hong Kong  improvements equipment equipment assets  construction Total
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
Cost
1 July 2002 8,000 151,156 2,962,121 448,203 60,773 252,711 3,882,964
Additions — 10,900 9,193 26,419 5,750 313,842 366,104
Reclassifications — — 243,185 — — {243,185) —
Disposals — — (84,043) (9,523) (3,638) {1,139) (98,343)
30 June 2003 8,000 162,056 3,130,456 465,099 62,885 322,229 4,150,725

Accumulated depreciation and impairment loss

1 July 2002 8,000 125,616 1,530,217 377,808 48,207 40,247 2,130,095
Charge for the year — 13,558 342,964 35,694 7,730 — 389,946
Reclassifications — — (179) — — 179 —
Written back on disposals — — (69,635) {9,508) (3,392) {3) (82,5386)
30 June 2003 8,000 139,174 1,803,367 403,996 52,545 40,423 2,447,505

Net book value

30 June 2003 - 22,882 1,327,089 61,103 10,340 281,806 1,703,220

30 June 2002 — 25,540 1,431,904 70,395 12,566 212,464 1,752,869

As at 30 June 2003, the net book value of fixed assets held by the Group under finance leases amounted to HK$657,828,203 (2002:
HK$807,959,000).

Included within network under construction are capitalised 3G spectrum utilisation fees of HK$86,091,000 (2002: HK$36,081,000).
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16 Interest in an associate

2003 2002
HK$000 HK$000

Group's share of net assets — —
Amount due from an associate, less provision 3,050 18,839

3,050 18,939
Details of the Group's associate at 30 June 2003 are as follows:

Place of incorporation Particulars of
Name and operation Principal activity issued shares held Interest held
New Top Finance Limited The British Virgin Islands Investment holdings 375 ordinary shares of  37.5%
US$1 each

The amount due from the associate is unsecured and intergst free, and has no fixed terms of repayment.

17 Investments

2003 2002
HK$000 HK$000
Equity securities
Overseas unlisted investments 44,144 39,213
Held-to-maturity debt securities
Listed
Civerseas 367,287 293,036
Hong Kong — 74,193
Unlisted 343,048 275,879
710,335 643,108
Less: Debt securities maturing within one year included
within current assets {53,387) —
656,948 643,108
701,092 682,321
Market value of listed securities
Overseas 379,186 293,095
Hong Kong - 75,244

379,186 368,339
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Investments (continued)

A loss of HK$6.3 million (2002 Nil) arose on the disposal of certain listed held-to-maturity debt securities as follows:

Net realised loss on disposal {6,336)

2003 2002

HK$000 HK$000

Proceeds of securities sold during the year 172,883 —
Proceeds of early redemption of securities 429,000 39,000
Total proceeds received 601,883 38,000
Carrying value at dates of disposal or redemption (608,219} (39,000)

The held-to-maturity debt securities sold during the year, were dispesed of prior to maturity, as a precautionary measure in light of

the deteriorating credit quality of the issuers of the securities.

The early redemption of held-to-maturity debt securities arose due to the issuers of the securities exercising their mandatory rights

and not at the discretion of the Group.

Deferred expenditure

2003 2002
Licence Licence
Handset application Handset application
subsidies  expenditure Total subsidies expenditure Total
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
Cost
1 July 772,952 4,159 777,111 768,792 4,159 762,951
Additions 14,960 —_ 14,960 14,160 — 14,160
30 June 787,912 4,159 792,071 772,952 4,159 777,111
Accumulated amortisation
1 July 768,682 4,125 772,807 728,395 3,709 732,104
Charge for the year 11,676 34 11,710 40,287 416 40,703
30 June 780,358 4,159 784,517 768,682 4,125 772,807
Net book value
30 June 7,554 — 7.554 4,270 34 4,304
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19  Subsidiaries

2003 2002

HK$000 HK$000

Unlisted shargs, at cost 939,189 939,189
Arnounts due from subsidiaries (note) 5,186,282 3,793,032
6,125,471 4,732,221
Ariounts due to & subsidiary (note) (29,387} (29,387)
6,096,084 4,702,834

Note:
The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured and interest-free, and are not repayable within twelve months of the balance sheet date.
Nene of the subsidiaries had any loan capital subsisting at the end or at any time during the year ended 30 June 2003 (2002: Nil}.

Details of the principal subsidiaries which materially affect the results for the year ended 30 June 2003 or the net assets at 30 June
2023 of the Group are set out below:

Particulars of Group
Place of Principal activities and issued equity
Name incorporation place of operation share capital interest
SmarTone {BVI) The British Investment holding and 1,000 ordinary 100%
limited * Virgin Islands group financing in BVI shares of US$1
('BVI') each
SmarTone Mobile Hong Kong Provision of digital mobile 100,000,000 100%
Communicztions radio telephone services ordinary shares
Limited and sales of mobile of HK$1 each
telephones and accessories
in Hong Kong
SmarTone 3G Hong Kong Provision of 3G mobile 2 ordinary shares 100%
Limited radio telephone services in of HK$7 each
Hong Kong
SmarTone Hong Kong Provision of agency and 2 ordinary shares 100%
Telecommunications consultancy services in of HK$1 each
Services {China) Hong Kong and Mainland
Limited China
SmarTone- Macau Provision of digital mobile 1,000,000 shares 72%

Comunicactes radio telephone services of MOP1 each

Moveis S.A. and sales of mobile
telephones and accessories

in Macau.
* Subsidiary held directly by the Company.

All of the above subsidiaries are limited liability companies.
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Inventories

At 30 June 2003 and 2002, all inventories represent goods held for re-sale. At 30 June 2003, the carrying amount of inventories

valued at net realisable value was HK$579,000 {2002: HK$4,340,000).

Trade receivables

The Group allows an average credit period of thirty days to its subscribers and other customers. The ageing of the trade receivables,

net of provisions, is as follows:

2003 2002
HK$000 HK$000
Current to 30 days 92,423 135,999
31-60 days 7,992 22,448
61-90 days 2,785 13,889
103,200 172,336

Cash and bank balances
2003 2002
HK$000 HK$000

Group

Pledged bank deposits 392,139 525,402
Cash and bank balances 2,820,725 2,418,105
3,212,864 2,843,507

Of the HK$392,139,000 (2002: HK$525,402,000) pledged bank deposits, HK$200,000,000 (2002: HK$250,000,000} has been pledged

as cash collateral for the Group's 3G licence performance bond as referred to in note 32 - ‘Contingent liabilities'.

2003 2002
HK$000 HK$000

Company
Pledged bank deposits 387,812 520,465
Cash and bank balances 2,995 4,002
390,807 524,467
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Trade payables
The ageing of the trade payables is as follows:

2003 2002
HK$000 HK$000
Current to 30 days 66,428 31,425
31-60 days 33,786 48,130
61 - 90 days 14,111 10,220
Over 90 days 31,577 3,496
145,902 93,271
Share capital
Shares of
HK$0.10 each HK$000
Authorised:
1 July 2002 and 30 June 2003 1,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid:
1 July 2001 592,278,842 53,228
Regurchases of shares (note a) (7,926,000) (793)
30 .June 2002 584,352,842 58,435
1 July 2002 584,352,842 58,435
Regurchases of shares (note b) (3,107,500) (311)
Issue of new shares in lieu of cash dividend (note c) 1,769,586 177
30 June 2003 583,014,928 58,301
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Share capital (continued)

Notes:

During the year ended 30 June 2002, the Company repurchased 7,926,000 shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. These
repurchased shares were subsequently cancelfled and an amount equivalent to the nominal value of these shares was transferred from retained

profits to the capital redemption reserve.

Details of these repurchases are as follows:

Price per share

Aggregate

Number of shares Highest Lowest price paid

Month of repurchase repurchased HKS HK$ HKS$
August 2001 1,154,500 8.95 8.70 10,152,375
November 2001 505,000 8.70 8.60 4,386,250
December 2001 1,505,500 8.55 8.40 12,776,228
March 2002 1,980,500 8.90 8.75 17,488,975
April 2002 2,780,500 S.00 8.80 24,832,425
7,926,000 69,638,250

—————

During the year ended 30 June 2003, the Company repurchased 3,107,500 shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. These
repurchased shares were subsequently cancelled and an amount equivalent to the nominal value of these shares was transferred from retained

profits to the capital redemption reserve.
Details of these repurchases are as foilows:

Price per share

Aggregate

Number of shares Highest Lowest price paid

Month of repurchase repurchased HK$ HK$ HK$
July 2002 108,500 7.95 7.90 865,525
August 2002 1,712,000 8.25 7.60 13,586,575
January 2003 908,500 8.50 835 7,708,725
February 2003 377,500 8.50 8.50 3,208,750
3,107,500 26,369,675

On 24 September 2002, the Company proposed a final dividend of HK$0.07 on its shares for the year ended 30 June 2002. The Company
offered its shareholders a scrip dividend alternative under which shareholders could elect to receive shares in lieu of the cash dividend (the
‘Scheme’). On 18 November 2002, 1,769,586 shares of HK$0.10 each were issued as fully paid under the Scheme, at a value of HK$8.19 per
share, A premium of HK$14.3 million arose in respect of the issue {note 26).
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Employee share option schemes

Pu-suant to the share option scheme adopted by the Company, employees in full time employment of the Group, including executive
diractors, may be granted options to subscribe for shares of the Company. Details of the share option scheme are set out in the
Report of the Directors.

A new share option scheme was adopted by the Company on 15 November 2002 (the ‘New Share Option Scheme’) to replace the
share option scheme which had been adopted on 17 October 1996 (the ‘Old Share Option Scheme'). This was to comply with the
requirements of the rules governing the listing of securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The Old Share Option Scheme was terminated by the Company on 15 November 2002. Upon termination of the Old Share Option
Scheme, no further options could be granted under the scheme but in all other respects, the provisions of the Old Share Option
Scheme remained in force and all options granted prior to termination remained valid and exercisable in accordance with its provisions.
Subseguent to 15 November 2002, all options outstanding under the Old Share Option Scheme either lapsed or were acquired for
a nominal amount of HK$0.07 per option pursuant to the mandatory general offer for the Company by Morgan Stanley Dean Witter
Asia Limited on behalf of Celiular 8 Holdings Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited ('General
Oftfer’). Those options acquired pursuant to the General Offer were subsequently cancelled.

Movement in share options

Year ended

Year ended 30 June 2003 30 June 2002

New Share Old Share Old Share

Option Option Option

Number of shares Scheme Scheme Total Scheme
1 July — 7,975,000 7,975,000 4,947,000
Issued 5,200,000 —_ 5,200,000 5,400,000
Cancelled or lepsed — (7,975,000) (7,975,000) (2,372,000)
30 June 5,200,000 — 5,200,000 7,975,000
Oprions vested at 30 June 1,066,667 — 1,066,667 2,575,000

There were no share options exercised during the year ended 30 June 2003 (2002: Nil).
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Employee share option schemes (continued)

Unexpired and unexercised share options

At 30 June 2003, options to subscribe for 5,200,000 shares under the New Share Option Scheme (2002: 7,975,000 shares under

the Old Share Option Scheme) were outstanding:

Exercise 30 June 2003 30 June 2002
price Number Number

Date of grant Exercise period HK$ of shares* of sharest
3 December 1996 1 January 1997 to 31 December 2003 16.10 — 53,000
4 Aprif 1998 14 April 1999 to 13 April 2005 20.60 —_ 812,500
17 November 1999 17 November 2000 to 16 November 2007 27.70 — 1,609,500
22 March 2000 22 March 2001 to 21 March 2007 25.50 — 100,000
13 July 2001 13 July 2002 to 12 July 2008 9.20 — 100,000
17 July 2001 17 July 2002 to 16 July 2011 9.29 — 5,000,000
19 March 2002 19 March 2003 to 18 March 2009 8.97 — 100,000
2 May 2002 2 May 2003 to 1 May 2012 .20 -— 200,000
10 February 2003 10 February 2003 to 16 July 2011 9.29 5,000,000 —
10 February 2003 2 May 2003 to 1 May 2012 9.20 200,000 —

All options outstanding at 30 June 2003 were granted under the New Share Option Scheme

T All options outstanding at 30 June 2002 were granted under the Old Share Option Scheme

Share options granted during the year

5,200,000

7,975,000

Exercise 30 June 2003 30 June 2002
price Number Number
Date of grant Exercise period HK$ of shares* of sharest
13 July 2001 13 July 2002 to 12 July 2008 9.20 —_ 100,000
17 July 2001 17 July 2002 to 16 July 2011 9.29 —_ 5,000,000
19 March 2002 19 March 2003 to 18 March 2009 8.97 — 100,000
2 May 2002 2 May 2003 to 1 May 2012 9.20 — 200,000
10 February 2003 10 February 2003 to 16 July 2011 9.29 5,000,000 —
10 February 2003 2 May 2003 to 1 May 2012 9.20 200,000 —
5,200,000 5,400,000
* All options granted during the year ended 30 June 2003 were granted under the New Share Option Scheme
1 All options granted during the year ended 30 June 2002 were granted under the Old Share Option Scheme
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26 Reserves

Capital
Share redemption Contributed Retained
premium reserve surplus profits Total
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
Group
1 July 2001 4,298,104 1,357 199,800 528,516 5,027,777
Repurchases of shares {note 24a) (68,844) 793 — (793) (68,844)
Profit for the year — —_ — 115,169 115,169
1 July 2002 4,229,260 2,150 199,800 642,892 5,074,102
Repurchases of shares (note 24b) (25,059) 311 — (311) (25,059)
Issue of new shares in lieu of cash
2002 final dividend (note 24c) 14,316 — — (14,493) (177)
Payment of 2002 final dividend — — — (26,284) (26,284)
Payment of 2003 interim dividend — — — (116,603) (116,803)
Profit for the year — — — 407,815 407,815
30 June 2003 4,218,517 2,461 199,800 893,016 5,313,794
Company
1 July 2001 4,298,104 1,367 938,989 36,536 5,274,986
Repurchases of shares (note 24a) (68,844) 793 — (793) (68,844)
Loss for the year — — — (35,411) (35.411)
1 July 2002 4,229,260 2,180 938,989 332 5,170,731
Repurchases of shares (note 24b) (25,059) 311 — (311) (25,059)
Issue of new shares in lieu of cash
2002 final dividend (note 24c¢) 14,316 — — {(14,493) (177)
Payment of 2002 final dividend — — — (26,284) (26,284)
Payment of 2003 interim dividend — — — (116,603) (116,603)
Profit for the year — — — 1,426,305 1,426,305
30 June 2003 4,218,517 2,461 938,989 1,268,946 6,428,913

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the difference between the nominal value of the share capital and share premium
of a subsidiary acquired pursuant to a group reorganisation in October 1996, over the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued
in exchange therefor.

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference between the nominal value of the Company's shares issued in
exchange for the issued share capital of the subsidiaries acquired and the net asset value of the subsidiaries acquired. Under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed surplus is distributable to shareholders.
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Deferred taxation

The potential deferred taxation assets/(liabilities) which have not been recognised in the financial statements are as follows;

Group
2003 2002
HK$000 HK$000
Accelerated depreciation allowances (74,422) (46,726)
Tax losses 135,650 136,990
Other timing differences — (644)
61,228 89,620

Related party transactions

a

During the year, the Group had significant transactions with certain related parties in the ordinary course of business as set

out below. All related party transactions are carried out in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreements governing

the transactions.

2003 2002
HK$000 HK$000

Operating lease rentals for land and buildings and
transmission sites (note i) 55,716 70,406
Insurance expense (note ii) 7,747 4,970
Consultancy fees (note iii) 279 1,776
Mobility Leaders membership subscription fee {note iv) — 354
Genie portal service {note v} — 951
LLeased line and IT outsourcing (note vi) 663 475

Notes:

{i) Operating lease rentals for land and buildings and transmission sites.

Certain subsidiaries and associated companies of Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited ('SHKP'), the ultimate holding company of the

Group, have leased premises to the Group for use as offices, retail shops and warehouses and have granted licences to the Group for

the installation of base stations, antenna and telephone cables on certain premises owned by them.

For the year ended 30 June 2003, rental and licence fees paid and payable to subsidiaries and associated companies of SHKP totalled
HK$55,716,000 (2002: HK$70,406,000). The expense for the year ended 30 June 2003 includes nil (2002: HK$7,832,000) in respect of

the early termination of certain office leases granted to the Group by SHKP.
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Related party transactions (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

(vib

Insurance services

Sun Hung Kai Properties Insurance Limited and Hung Kai Insurance Brokers Company Limited, wholly-owned subsidiaries of SHKP,
orovide general insurance services to the Group. For the year ended 30 June 2003, insurance premiums paid and payable were
HK$7,747,000 {2002 HK$4,870,000).

Consultancy services

British Telecommunications Plc. ('BT'), a substantial shareholder of the Company until 7 January 2003, and a subsidiary company of BT
have provided consultancy services to the Group, For the year ended 30 June 2003, the consultancy fees paid were HK$279,000 (2002:
HK$3686,000).

The Group paid consultancy and technical support fees to companies in which a non-executive director who resigned in the year ended
30 June 2002 has an interest. For the year ended 30 June 2003, there were no transactions and accordingly the total fees paid were nil
(2002; HK$1,295,000}.

Sun Hung Kai Real Estate Agency Limited and Sun Hung Kai Engineering Company Limited, wholly-owned subsidiaries of SHKP,
provided consultancy services to the Group. For the year ended 30 June 2003, there were no transactions and accordingly the consultancy
fees paid were nil (2002: HK$115,000).

Mobility Leaders membership subscription fees

The Group subscribed to Mobility Leaders, an information sharing program organised by BT. The contract was terminated during the
year ended 30 June 2002 and for the year ended 30 June 2003, the subscription fees paid were nil (2002; HK$354,000).

Genie portal service

The Group contracted with Genie Internet (Hong Kong) Limited, a subsidiary of BT, to provide mobile portal services. The contract was
terminated during the year ended 30 June 2002 and for the year ended 30 June 2003, fees paid were nil (2002: HK$951,000).

Leased line and IT outsourcing

SUNeVision Super e-Technology Services Limited and SUNeVision (Management Services} Limited, subsidiaries of SHKP, have contracted
with the Group to provide leased line and IT outsourcing services respectively. For the year ended 30 June 2003, the leased line rentals
and IT outsourcing services fees paid were HK$120,000 (2002: HK$475,000) and HK$503,000 (2002: Nil) respectively.

b At 30 June 2003, the Group had an interest in an associate, the major shareholder of which is a subsidiary of SHKP. The

principal activity of the associate is to invest in an equity fund which primarily invests in technology related companies in the

People’s Republic of China.

c In Octeber 1998, New-Alliance Asset Management (Asia) Limited {'New-Alliance’), an associate of SHKP, was appointed as

the investrment manager of the Group's Provident Scheme. New-Alliance is remunerated by way of fee levied on funds under

management. Accordingly, no fee was paid by the Group to New-Alliance for the year ended 30 June 2003 (2002: Nil).




28 Related party transactions (continuad)
d The trading balances set out below with SHKP and its subsidiaries {the ‘SHKP Group’) (including buildings and estates managed
by the SHKP Group) are included within the relevant balance sheet items:

30 June 2003

HIK$000

Trade receivables 331
Deposits and prepayments 7,061
Trade payables 329
Other payables and accruals 467

The trading balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on similar terms to those offered to unrelated parties. The
Group was not a subsidiary of SHKP at 30 June 2002.

29  Capital commitments

Group

2003 2002
HK$000 HK$000

Contracted but not provided for
Fixed assets 82,408 63,345
Further advances to an associate 1,324 28,728
Equity securities 27,300 35,100
Authorised but not contracted for 418,730 408,000
529,762 535,173
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Lease commitments

The Group had future aggregate minimum operating lease commitments in respect of the following:

Group
2003 2002
HK$000 HK3$000
Land and buildings and transmission sites
Within one year 220,746 243,408
In the second to fifth year inclusive 121,944 127,522
After the fifth year 17,524 3,388
360,214 374,318
Leased lines
\Vithin one vear 37,164 4,732
In the second to fifth year inclusive 3,129 1,799
40,293 6,531
The Company did not have any operating lease commitments as at 30 June 2003 (2002: Nil).
Notes to the consolidated cash flow statement
Reconciliation of profit for the year to net cash inflow generated from operations
2003 2002
HK$000 HK$000
Profit for the vear 407,085 109,095
Depreciation 399,946 410,348
Arqortisation of deferred expenditure 11,710 40,703
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 1,777 12,099
Interest income {72,140) (86,108)
Irr pairment charge (note 6) — 122,495
Share of loss of an associate 16,620 3
Nat cash inflow from operations before working capital changes 764,998 608,635
Decrease/f(increase) in inventories and inventories in transit 4,851 (10,463)
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables, prepayments,
deposits and other receivables 103,876 (14,401)
Decrease in payables, accruals, deferred income and
customers’ deposits (29,822) (196,742)
Net cash inflow generated from operations 843,903 387,029




32

Contingent liabilities

a

Performance honds

Group Company
2003 2002 2003 2002
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
Hong Kong 3G licence (note ¢) 200,000 250,000 200,000 250,000
Qther 1,942 57,842 —_— 56,000
201,942 307,942 200,000 306,000

The performance bonds were issued by certain banks in favour of the telecommunications authorities of Hong Kong and
Macau in accordance with various telecommunications licences issued by those authorities to the Group. The banks' abligations
under the performance bonds are guaranteed by the Company and various subsidiaries of the Company,

During the year ended 30 June 2003, all performance bond cbligations relating to the Group's Fixed Telecommunications
Network Services Licence were satisfied and the related bonds released.

Lease out, lease back agreements

Under certain lease out, lease back agreements entered into during the year ended 30 June 1999, a subsidiary of the Company
has undertaken to guarantee the obligations of the intermediary lessees to the lessors as agreed at the inception of the lease
for a period of 16 years. The directors are of the opinion that the risk of the subsidiary company being called upon to honour
this guarantee is remote and accordingly the directers do not consider that an estimate of the potential financial effect of
these contingencies can practically be made.

Acquisition of telecommunications licence for third generation (‘3G’) services

On 22 October 2001, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company was issued a Mobile Carrier Licence. This Licence is for the
provision of public telecommunications network services in Hong Kong using third-generation mobile services technology.
The Licence is for a duration of fifteen years. The following fees are payable under the Licence:

(i) For each of the first five years from 22 October 2001, HK$50 million per annum payable at the end of gach year;
(i) For the remaining years of the Licence; the greater of:

. 5 per cent. of network turnover (as defined in the Licence) in respect of the relevant year; or

. The Appropriate Fee (as defined in the Licence) in respect of the relevant year; and
(i HK$1,388,888.88 payable on the issue of the Licence.

The total amount of the annual fees for the first five years of the Licence is HK$250 million. The total minimum amount of
fees payable over the remaining ten years is HK$1,057 million giving a total minimum amount of annual fees over the fifteen
years of the Licence of HK$1,307 million. The net present value of the minimum total annual fees payments under the
Licence at its inception, at an assumed cost of capital of the Group of 13 per cent., is approximately HK$458 million.

)
=3




For the year ended 30 June 2003

32 Contingent liabilities (continued)

c Acquisition of telecommunications licence for third generation {‘3G’) services (continued)

The Group is required to provide a performance bond to the Telecommunications Authority of Hong Kong ('TA'). The Licence

sets out the amount and duration of the performance bond as follows:

. A performance bond upon inception for the Licence with a duration of five years and for an amount equal to the fees for
the first five years (HK$250 million).

. The performance bond must be revised annually to remain in force for five years (or to the end of the Licence, if a

shorter period).

. The amount of the performance bond shall also be revised annually to equal the minimum annual fees payable to the
TA during the next five years (or till the end of the Licence, if a shorter period).

On 22 October 2002, the first anniversary of the Licence, the performance bond was revised. Therefore, in accordance with
a one-year waiver granted by the TA, the revised bond was for HK$200 million with a duration of four years.

The TA can claim payment under the performance bond on the occurrence of various events including failure of the Licensee
to pay all or any fees due 1o insolvency of the Licensee or upon surrender of the Licence by the Licensee.

33  Ultimate holding company
The directors regard Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited ('SHKP') as being the ultimate holding company of SmarTone Telecommunications
Ho.dings Limited. SHKP is a company incorporated in Hong Kong with its shares listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

34 Proposed cancellation of share premium account
On 23 September 2003, the Company announced that it proposed to cancel the entire amount of HK$4,218,517,000 standing to the
credit of the share premium account. The credit arising from the cancellation to be transferred to the contributed surplus account.
The share premium account cancellation is conditional upon the shareholders of the Company passing a special resolution to
approve the cancellation at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 7 November 2003.

The effect of the share premium cancellation will be to reduce the share premium account from HK$4,218,517,000 to nil and
increase the contributed surplus account from HK$938,989,000 to HK$5,157,506,000. Amounts standing to the credit of the
contributed surplus account are distributable to shareholders, whereas amounts standing to the credit of the share premium account
are not distributable. The cancellation of the share premium account and transfer to contributed surplus account will therefore

increase the distributable reserves of the company by HK$4,218,517,000.

35  Approval of financial statements
The financial statements were approved by the board of directors on 23 September 2003.
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